CATS

CARPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

REGULAR MEETING

OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
MAY 21, 2019
4:30 pm
BREC Administration Building 6201 Florida Boulevard
Commission Room
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

AGENDA

. CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Mark Bellue
il ROLL CALL: Ms. Amie McNaylor
. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF APRIL 16, 2019 MEETING: Mr. Mark Bellue
IV. PRESIDENT'S ANNOUNCEMENTS: Mr. Mark Bellue
V. SAFETY MOMENT: Ms. Renee Simpson
V. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS
1. Executive and Financial Report: Mr. Bill Deville and Executive Staff
Vil. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ANY ACTION THEREON
Finance & Executive: Mr. Mark Bellue
Technical, Policies & Practices: Dr. Peter Breaux
Audit: Mr. Kahli Cohran (no meeting held)

Planning: Mr. Kevin O’Gorman (no meeting held)
Community Relations: Ms. Linda Perkins

o B o) e b



VIlil. PENSION SYSTEM UPDATE: Mr. Jim Brandt
IX. ACTION ITEMS

1. Consideration of authorization to award professional services contract to
Pierlott & Associates

2, Consideration of authorization for the CEO to settle the claims of Arthur
Davis, Sr., Arthur Davis, Jr., Artisha Davis, and Carla Davis under the
terms of the settlement and judgment payment policy adopted by the
Board on July 20, 2004 as amended. (This matter might possibly be
discussed in executive session. As required by the Open Meeting Law,
notice is hereby given that this claim is pending in the 19" Judicial
District Court and is Suit Number 640,054, Sec. 22; and that Arthur Davis,
Sr., Arthur Davis, Jr., Artisha Davis, and Carla Davis are the plaintiffs and
Capital Area Transit System and Eric Marselis are the defendants.)

X. PUBLIC COMMENT

Xi. ADJOURNMENT

Individuals having questions regarding the meeting should contact Amie McNaylor,
225,389.8920, 2250 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA 70802.

Individuals needing special accommodations during this meeting should contact
Karen Denman (225) 389-8920, Ext. 1504, 2250 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA
70802, no later than 4:00 p.m. on the Monday immediately preceding the Tuesday
meeting.

K




CAHTS

CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
APRIL 16, 2019
4:30 p.m.
BREC Administration Building
6201 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

MINUTES
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Jim Brandt
Mr. Bellue called the meeting to order.
ROLL CALL
Present at the meeting were members Messrs. Bellue, Brandt, Breaux,
Cohran, Lambert, and O’Gorman and Mss. Green, Perkins and Pierre. Also
present were Mr. Bill Deville, CEO; Mr. Darrell Brown, CAO; other CATS
staff; Creighton Abadie, CATS attorney; and members of the public.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MARCH 19, 2019 MEETING
Mr. Brandt moved to approve the minutes of the March 19, 2019, meeting
and Ms. Pierre seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment
and there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

PRESIDENT'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

Mr. Bellue welcomed the public and provided a review of the public
comment process.

SAFETY MOMENT

Ms. Simpson shared a safety moment centered on railroad crossing safety.



Vi.

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1.

Executive and Financial Report: Mr. Bill Deville and Executive Staff

Mr. Deville introduced Jim Fight as the new Human Resources
Director and noted that he is from the Kansas City area. He comes to
the agency with decades of human resources experience and more
than ten years of transit experience,

Ms. Williams introduced Dem
the Operations Department.

Ms. Dwana Williams shared:
122 active operators.

10,000 miles, 511 trips
for the month. The

ject documentation, conceptual design, and
¢ application to the BUILD grant (Better Utilizing
verage Development) rather than the Small Starts
working closely with the City Parish the

resources and what appears now to be a better and possibly lower
cost option.

Mr. Deville let the board know that CATS received word that
Congressman Graves is still interested in having CATS explore the
paratransit/Uber on-demand model that is being successfully used in
Boston. MV, the paratransit service provider for CATS, has
experience with this model from their work with Dallas DART and is




going to meet with CATS to discuss the possibilities for Baton
Rouge.

Mr. Garrick Rose shared that CATS has partnered with TransLoc to
determine the best zones in which to provide a microtransit pilot
project. He noted that this study is being funded by federal grants
the agency needed to expend. CATS is looking to possibly provide
microtransit service in two areas — North Baton Rouge surrounding
Southern University and the Baton Rouge Airport, and in the City of

Baker.

y is preparing the CATS

Mr. Rose let the beard know that Pl
-‘-ATS Program of Projects.

FY2019 grants applications and
The grants staff is continuing
the FTA for the triennial revie!

. DDD will assist
r. CATS has

of projects for inclusion
Program/State

at, regarding the North Baton Rouge
fing the FTA’s approval of the 2018

is awaiting the construction permit. Current
will relocate its operation to the mall side of
d this is scheduled to begin at the end of April.

Regarding bus rapid transit, Mr. Deville shared that the electric buses
have been delivered and are being inspected by the Maintenance
Department. He noted that the Communications Department wili
begin a campaign when the buses are ready for revenue service. Mr.
Deville let the board members know that the buses would go into
fixed route revenue service prior to their service for the BRT.




Mr. Deville updated the board on the Baker Park and Ride facility and
noted that Baker Mayor Waites has a vision and wants to see a
transit component. The first step of the project is a feasibility study
to determine both the site and the feasibility for the project. CATS
has committed $12,000 to the local match of the project.

Mr. Deville shared the statement of budgeting versus actual for 2018
as prepared by P&N and noted that there were a number adjustments
that need to be made by the auditors in their preparation. These
were discussed and inciude revenues being understated.

CATS had $2,251,170 in total operat penses. There was

$246,694 in CATS generated rev -$1.850,383 in non-federal
subsidies, and $256,703 in fed ‘
balance was $102,611.

VII. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND AN

1. Finance and Exec

Mr. Bellue referred |
April 11" meeting in't}

onsideration at the board
by the F&E Committee.

audit. He shared that there was a transition of accounting software
and the auditors are working to meet the deadline. He noted that the
goal is to have a finalized audit before the next board meeting.

4, Planning: Mr. Kevin Q’Gorman

Mr. O’Gorman referred the members to the minutes of the
committee’s April 12" meeting in their packets. He shared the
highlights and noted that there was discussion on the hubs, bus




rapid transit, the two year capital budget, and the Baker park and
ride.

5. Community Relations: Ms. Linda Perkins

Ms. Perkins noted the committee did not meet. She shared that,
beginning in May, the committee will begin meeting monthly.

Ms. Perkins commended the staff for the operators’ appreciation day
event the agency held.

noted that there were 7,675
|lations and 308 were no-
'here were 12 complaints

Ms. Crystal Wilson of MV Transportat
scheduled trips; of those, 630 w
shows for a total of 6,737 com

Vill. ACTIONITEMS

1. Consideration of t

tomer satisfaction
ke the resuits of the

ral option to continue the semi-
rveys. The cost for these two

stakeholders to determine areas of improvements to the agency.

Mr. Bellue noted this item was recommended for approval by the
F&E Committee.

Mr. Brandt moved that the CEQ is authorized to renew the contract
with ETC Institute for customer satisfaction surveys with an
amendment to include one additional non-rider survey and Ms.
Perkins seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment and




there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no
abstentions.

2. Consideration of award of antifreeze services contract to Miguez
Fuel

Mr. Darrell Brown informed the members that this contract will be
the second contract with Miguez Fuel, which is the reason to bring it
before the board.

CATS advertised an Invitation to Bid (T r motor oil and antifreeze
and Miguez Fuel was the lowest res e and responsible bidder.

The cost for the antifreeze wilt be

ard packet that lists many of the transit
ountry participating and they are all

he Communications Department will produce cards
with transit facts and publish a page on the website with CATS
transit information.

Staff and committee members had an in-depth discussion regarding
the topic at the F&E meeting and examined the pros and cons of
participating in this event. The committee members agreed that it
was a worthy initiative and unanimously recommended that the
board consider waiving the fares.




Ms. Perkins moved that the CEQO is authorized to waive fares on April
25th for National Get On Board Day and Mr. Lambert seconded the
motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment and there was none. The
motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Consideration of authorization to approve CATS Information
Technology Backup Policy

defines the backup policy
uter files and backup
. Eckert noted that the

Ms. Jeanette Eckert shared that this poli
for CATS computers. In addition to com
services, it will include CATS serve

. Mr. Bellue invited public comment
. passed unanimously with no

The passenger code of conduct was created in 2015 and was
presented to the Community Relations Committee at that time. The
passengers were made aware of the rules when they were created
and implemented, and there are still interior ads in the vehicles
detailing the rules to remember. ‘

The agency has had procedures in place to either suspend or ban
passengers when their behavior warrants such actions, but they




have not been gathered in one document to this point. This policy
does that.

The policy details the procedure that passengers can follow to
appeal their suspension or expulsion from the system and the steps
to take to request re-entry.

The policy was written with coordination by the Operations,
Customer Care, and Safety Departments. |t was vetted by the internal
executive policy committee and has beenreviewed by Mr. Abadie.

rﬁmittee there was no
ally recommend the policy,
¢y should be

This policy was presented to the TP
guorum so the committee could
but the members present did
recommended for approval.
and did recommend the ho?

There was discussion regardi

suspended or banned as well rs that have

length of

Perkins seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment and
there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no
ahstentions.

RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
DECLARING CERTAIN ITEMS AS SURPLUS PROPERTY

BE IT RESOLVED that the following Gillig buses and Ford Cutaway van
and parts are declared surplus property and that the CEO of Capital




Area Transit System (CATS) is authorized to have the buses and parts
disposed of as he deems fit:

Two (2) 1997 Gillig Phantoms
Once (1) 1998 Gillig Phantom
Two {2) 2001 Gillig Phantoms
One {1) 2013 Ford Glaval Cutaway

Description
Vehicle Year Length - CATS Date in
No. ‘ Vehicle Service
104 1997 35 foot 4/28/1997
114 1997 35 foot 5151997
122 1998 35 foot 4/18/1998
253 2001 CB271811111319 | 11/8/2014
254 200 B271611111321 | 11/8/2014
255 15GCB271811111322 | 11/8/2014
90 1FDGF5GTIDEA24800 | 4/11/2013

ization to add Dwana Williams as signatory
for all Whitney/Hancock Bank accounts and

it was noted that CATS requires two signatures on all checks made

by the agency and since the departure of Mr. Goldman, there have
been only three approved signatories. it is helpful to have four
approved signatories in the event someone is not available when
checks need to be sighed. It was noted that the three current
signatories are Mr. Deville, Ms. Rhonda Williams, and Ms. Eckert.

Ms. Perkins moved that the CEO is authorized to add Dwana Williams
as signatory on behalf of CATS for all Whitney/Hancock Bank




accounts and the CEQ is authorized to execute all documents
required by Whitney/Hancock Bank to effectuate these changes. Ms.
Green seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment and
there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no
abstentions.

RESOLUTION OF A STATE OR LOCAL GOVERNMENT OPERATING
UNDER AUTHORITY OF A BOARD, COUNCIL OR OTHER TYPE OF
GOVERNING BODY

Whitney Bank, also dba Hancock Ban
Name: Capital Area Transit System
City, State and ZIP: Baton Rou

ess: 2250 Florida Boulevard

following is a tru
at a meeting of the

ion has been properly
dified or rescinded.

ed above is designated as a
Governing Authority:

i borrowings by or on behalf of the Governing
1is Financial Institution prior to the adoption of this

{4) Any of the persons named below, so long as they are acting in a
representative capacity as agents of the Governing Authority, are
authorized to make any and all contracts, agreements, stipulations
and orders which they deem advisable and necessary to open an
Account(s) with the Financial Institution and for the effective
exercise of powers over said account{s) for the transacting of all
business concerning funds deposited in, moneys borrowed from, or
other business transacted by and between this Governing Authority




and said Financial Institution and; to endorse checks and orders for
the payment of moneys and withdrawal of funds on deposit with this
Financial Institution, subject to any restriction(s) stated below. The
Governing Authority agrees to, shall be bound by, and otherwise be
liable for, the terms and conditions of all such contracts,
agreements, stipulations and orders. it shall be the responsibility of
the Governing Authority to provide written notice to this Financial
institution should the authority of any of the agents it has so
authorized to transact business on its behalf has been terminated.
This Financial Institution shali incur no liability for acting in good
faith upon the representations of said ts until such notice is
properly given:

(5) Any and all prior resolutio
certified to this Financial In
the Governing Authority’s

ime, to charge the
other orders, for the

ame and title) is authorized to
rein on all accounts opened under

| further certify that the Governing Authority has, and at the time of
adoption of this resolution did have, full power and lawful authority
to adopt this foregoing resolution(s) and to confer the powers
granted to the person(s) named herein:

IN WITNESS THEREOF, we have hereunto affixed our
signatures as of {date).




President Secretary/Clerk

Printed Name Printed Name

EXHIBIT A

TS ANNEXED TO AND
CAL GOVERNMENT
NCIl. OR OTHER TYPE

MASTER SIGNATURE CARD FOR DEPOSITORY AC
MADE PART OF THE RESOLUTION OF A STATE;
OPERATING UNDER AUTHORITY OF A BOARD,
GOVERNING BODY

?gnsit System

KAXKKXX

ipts XOOOUXXX

: XUXXXXXX

10.Medicaid Reir ements  JOOXXXXX
11. Property Tax Fun XXXXXXX

MASTER SIGNATURE CARD FOR DEPOSITORY ACCOUNTS ANNEXED
TO AND MADE PART OF THE RESOLUTION OF A STATE OR LOCAL
GOVERNMENT OPERATING UNDER AUTHORITY OF A BOARD, COUNCIL
OR OTHER TYPE GOVERNING BODY

Customer Information:




Select One: 0 New Account X Update (Add/Delete) Signers 0 Supersede

Exiting Signature Card

Governing Authority Name/Customer Name: Capital Area Transit System
Address: 2250 Florida Blvd City, State

Phone: 225-389-8920 Tax ID Number: 72-0755868

The undersigned certifies to Bank that (1) he/she is authorized to sign this
Master Signature Card for Depository Accounts g“Signature Card”) on behalf
of Customer that are listed on Exhibit A (hereinafter referred to as Listed
Accounts) and certifies that all statements made on this Signature Card are
correct and in accordance with Customer’s internal account authorization,
organizational and governing documents; {2) e ignature presented on
this Signature Card is the signature of the na person, who is authorized
to sign and otherwise act on behalf of Cust
with respect to the accounts listed in this
its behalf and on behalf of all Listed Ac
agrees to be bound by the Bank’s De
Conditions, as may be amended by

‘e Card. The Customer on
wiedges receipt of, and

Authorized Signature Date
Authorized Signature Date
Authorized Sig Date
Authorized S i Date
Authori i Officer Title Date

e ad valorem tax millage rate of 10.6 mills for the
uge for the year 2019

Mr. Abadie read the following resolution into the record:
RESOLUTION TO ADOPT AND LEVY TAX MILLAGE

RATE OF 10.6 MILLS FOR THE
CITY OF BATON ROUGE FOR THE YEAR 2019

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of Capital Area
Transit System that the following millage(s) are hereby levied on the




2019 tax roll on all property subject to taxation in the City of Baton
Rouge by Capital Area Transit System:

MILLAGE
Capital Area Transit System tax in the City of Baton Rouge 10.6 mills

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proper administrative officials
of the Parish of East Baton Rouge, State of Louisiana, be and they
are hereby empowered, authorized, and directed to spread said
taxes, as hereinabove set forth, upon th sessment roll of said
Parish for the year 2019, and to make the collection of the taxes
imposed for and on behalf of the ta uthority, according to law,
and that the taxes herein levied eécome a permanent lien and
privilege on all property subje :

nce Lambert, Kevin
ierre voting in favor, no

Capital ransit System:
MILLAGE
Capital Area Transit System tax in the City of Baker 10.6 mills

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proper administrative officials
of the Parish of East Baton Rouge, State of Louisiana, be and they
are hereby empowered, authorized, and directed to spread said
taxes, as hereinabove set forth, upon the assessment roll of said
Parish for the year 2019, and to make the collection of the taxes




IX.

11.

imposed for and on behalf of the taxing authority, according to law,
and that the taxes herein levied shall become a permanent lien and
privilege on all property subject to taxation as herein set forth, and
collection thereof shall be enforceable in the manner provided by
law.

Ms. Perkins moved to adopt the resolution and Ms. Pierre seconded
the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment and there was none.
The motion passed with Mark Bellue, James Brandt, Peter Breaux,
Kahli Cohran, Erika Green, Laurence Lambert, Kevin O’Gorman,
Linda Perkins and Antoinette Pierre voting‘in favor, no votes against
and no abstentions.

Consideration of authorizatio
Arthur Davis, Sr., Arthur Davi

might possibly be discusse
the Open Meetmg Law, notlce

rt and is Suit
r., Arthur Davis, Jr., Artisha
Capltal Area TranSIt

640,054, Sec. 22; ant
Davis, and Carla Davit




2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

b il

Bill Deville
Chief Executive Officer

Darrell Brown
Chief Administrative Officer

Dwana Williams
Chief Operations Officer

brcats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARERA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

EXECUTIVE REPORT
May2019
Bill Deville and Executive Staff

HUMAN RESOURCES: Jim Fight

Overview of vision for Human Resources

See attached PowerPoint that was presented to workforce stakeholders.
The agency organized a roundtable with community workforce stakeholders.
This is part of the broader initiative to create a “pipeline” for good local
talent. There were representatives from various workforce agencies, BRCC,
and several youth outreach programs. Also in attendance were CATS board
members Antoinette Pierre and Linda Perkins.

o Several members of CATS staff were in attendance at the meeting to
represent the agency.

CATS is planning a job fair to recruit for maintenance and operations
positions.

o The fair, “Behind the Wheel”, will be held at the Automotive Campus
of BRCC on Tuesday, June 4™ from 12:00pm until 6:00pm.

o The agency will have CATS employees on hand to conduct on-the-spot
interviews with the hope of hiring operators and mechanics on the
spot.

o Human Resources and Communications are working together to
produce materials to distribute prior to the event, and there will be
radio spots promoting the job fair as well.

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE: Dwana Williams

Operations now has 134 active Operators as a result of some operators
returning to work. There are 13 currently inactive due to workers’
compensation, light duty, and FMLA.

See attached Performance Measures.

CEO NOTES: Bill Deville

CATS was invited to attend the BRNEDD (Baton Rouge North Economic
Development District) May 8" “Transportation Drives Economic
Development” Luncheon panel discussion. The event was part of the
BRNEDD’s week of events highlighting the NBR area. CATS Board Vice-
President Erika Green was the moderator for the panel discussion. CATS Board
Treasurer Kahli Cohran and Bill Deville joined Dr. Shawn Wilson, Secretary of
LaDOTD, Mike Edwards, Director of Aviation/BTR, Bryan Jones, HNTB, and
Kelvin Hill, EBR Assistant CAO as panelists for the discussion.

CATS was invited to attend and participate in the Stakeholder group meetings
regarding the Baton Rouge Zoo and Greenwood Community Park Master
Plans that involved various scenarios for transportation to and from both
venues.



2250 Florida Boulevard CI I I S

Baton Rouge LA 708“2 CAPITAL RRER TRANSIT SYSTEM
PHONE: 225.388.8920

e CATS was also invited to attend and present a CATS status report to the
members of the Mid-City AARP Group that is represented by members from
across Baton Rouge. The meeting was well attended, enthusiastic, and they

had lots of questions.

PLANNING AND GRANTS: Garrick Rose

e Planning has submitted its 5 Year Program of Projects for inclusion in the June
2019 TIP/STIP.

e Planning and Grants staff met with Pierlott & Associates from May 7-9, 2019
to review the information requested by the FTA for the Triennial Review
Process. There is a Triennial Review workshop in Baton Rouge, LA on June 4-5,
2019 and the Triennial Review itself is scheduled for August 7-8, 2019.

e Planning is scheduled to meet with Our Lady of the Lake staff to discuss CATS
service to the new hospital campus.

e Planning continues to refine the FTA FY2019 grant award applications.

- EXECUTIVE STAFF

FACILITIES PLANNING: James Baker or Garrick Rose
North Baton Rouge Transit Center:

o Legal counsel for CATS is working with LSU officials to complete certain

legislative requirements prior to executing the purchase agreement.
East Baton Rouge Transit Center — Cortana-Walmart Transit Center:

e Operations has safely and successfully relocated its service stops and shelters
from the Walmart side to the Mall side of Cortana Place. Kelly Construction
continues to work with DPW to resolve traffic and safety issues.

o Demolition of the site is underway. Safety fencing and debris controls
are in place, along with construction equipment and a construction
trailer.

o Further demolition of the Oak Villa Street side is pending approval of
the traffic and safety plan.

BUS RAPID TRANSIT:
Plank Road BRT, Phase One:

e The SIB engineering team is collaborating with the HNTB design group, along
with the City-Parish DPW to ensure seamless cooperation and coordination
for all station engineering and amenities design decisions.

o The team is meeting to identify and resolve technical and budgetary
issues necessary to advance the Plank Road Phase One and the Plank-
Nicholson Phase Two.
Plank-Nicholson BRT:

e A preliminary assessment of the BRT stations has been completed by SJB. The
assessment focused on right-of-way limitations, ADA compliance, site
evaluations and development of conceptual design plans. The assessment has
confirmed the suitability and acceptability of the BRT station locations and
allows the design phase to advance to the utility phase. The sites deemed

brcats.com




2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE:  225.389.8920

EXECUTIVE STAFF

breats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

unacceptable because of traffic issues, ADA compliance, space limitations, etc.
have been replaced with alternative sites.

CATS and the City-Parish are currently in discussions to review additional costs
requests to cover the NEPA (National Environmental Protection Act) study for
the Plank Phase One and Plank-Nicholson Phase Two projects. The NEPA
process is necessary as part of the Small Start submittal process.

Once additional funding has been approved, CATS and HNTB will prepare
support documentation to secure environmental clearance for the Plank
(Phase One) and Plank-Nicholson (Phase Two) projects. A Categorical
Exclusion is anticipated permitting both phases to proceed.

HNTB has generated renderings illustrating the BRT station design proposed
at Chippewa and LSU. Though preliminary, these renderings illustrate the
context and setting for these planned transit improvements.

CITY OF BAKER:
Baker Transportation Center Project

The Baker Transportation Center, a bus layover facility and a park-and-ride, is
a collaborative project among CATS, the City of Baker, and CRPC. CRPC s
spearheading this project.

The first step this project is feasibility / Site planning and design concept
study.

CRPC solicited a planning service contract to begin a site planning and design
concepts study. The study is expected to be completed before end of the

calendar year 2019.



L¥9'10T

S8Y'ETT

€91°TCC

€St'TTe

6T0C ™

LZ9°€0T

€20'91C

Z19'sve

99€°81Z

162°L12

£96'STT

PovTI

€99°€TT

vZ'81e

YZE'TET

160'6TC

755°91C

810C m

BoETg

"AON

100

3das

‘Bny

Anr

aunf

Ae

Judy

SN

‘g=4

‘uer

diysiapry

00005

000°00T

000°0ST

000002

000052

000°00€

W3L5AS JSvEA1 3 Wik

olg]




sdojs
snq wasAs 0303 ayg Jo 3%/ £°F7T Juasaidar yoriym spuiodawy pajnpayas 3o paunsoaw 51 puouuolzd awii-uQ 30N
JDUBWIOHA SWI-UQ %08 1251e]

%6v'v9

%89°09

%9T°L9

%16°L9

610 = |

%099

%899

%€99

%6°L9

%L

%0°69

%89

%8[9

%TL9

%98°59

%B8E99

%¥EL99

8T0Z W |

“23Q

“AON

120

“3das

*3ny

Ajng

aung

Aepy

Judy

yaie

‘q=4

‘uef

%000

%00'0T

%00"02

%00°0€

%00°0t

%0005

%0009

%00°0L

%00°08

%00°06 ,

3duBWI0}Iad 3wl]-uQ

%00°00T ,

2SS O] 3 WdD

|
J




%S L6 | %Y'86 | %P'66 | %566 | paiesadQ sdiil sng pajnpayIs Jo % 6TOZ M
SPL28|STTTIS|SE00C| 9°ELT sdiiL sng pa|j@oued 610Z m
%L'86 | %686 | %686 | %E66 | %C 66 | %66 | BT'66 | %66 | %L 66 | %8 66 |%0E 66| %E 66 | paietadp sdul sng panpayas Jo % 8T0Z W
0'S8E | ¥'6EE | 0'92E | 09TC | O'F9C | O'V6T | O'E6C | O'TOZ | O'E6 99 €'0¥C | s'6¢C sdii] sng pa|j2oued 8T0Z |
02Q | AON | 100 | ades | Bny | Ainr | sunr | Aewy | qudy |yssely | cgedq ‘uer
0
00T
00¢
00¢€
oov
009
009
00L
008
ppsng 00

WELSAS Skl 3k R0

o183




s3uipaeog 000°00T 42d sjulejdwo) Jowoisn) Oz ueyy ssa| 3284e],

[Ara T'LS L'TE 9'9¢ 6T0C m
LT €L £'8¢ 9'9¢ 80t Tve 8LE T'€EE 6'¢2 6°S¢ L'EC 6'TE 810Zm
“ag ‘AON PO ydag ‘8ny Apng aunf Aey Judy yaaep ‘qe4 ‘uer

ssuipieog 000‘00T 42d Siulejdwo) sawoisn)

ot
0z
0€
ot
0s

09

W3LSAS J/SHHHL b3 Wkekdd

51d]




SS|I 000°00T 494 SIUSPIIY 3|qeIuanaid 5z 198el,

A LT 8's 'T 6T0C ™
6'T € €71 8T 9'1T L't Lt 9'T L0 €1 TT S'E 8T0Z ™
*3Q ‘AON ‘10 -das *Bny Aing aunf Aep (ady yoJen ‘god ‘uer
0
T
4
[ — - _—
€
v
S
9
L

S9!l 000°00T 42d S3UBPIIY d|qeIUAId

W3LSAS LISHEHI Y3tk LD

5153




€8S, | ST’V | ZBL'T | ZZB'E |sl|ED peOY "199 SIIN UBBN 610 |
8LE'Y | TVE'S | TL6'S | TL8'V | €€5°G | 8290 | 8940 | 6SCL | T¥I'9 | STI'6 | 8IB'OT | TIST [S||eD peoy “19g S9|lAl UBN 8T0Z |
e=Tg| ‘AON ‘120 -1deg ‘Bny Alnr aunfg AeN |dy Je ICEE uer

S|jed peoy usamilag Sa|l|Al UEI|A|

000C

000y

0009

0008

000°01T

0002t

UIBISAS L/SNaL U e

il=N




CATS

TUESDAY, JUNE 4, 2019
BRCC ARDENDALE SITE
12:00 - 6:00 PM

200-6:00PM

CATS is looking to fill up to

/0 positions before the end of
2019. Training classes starting
at the end of June 2019.

Please bring a copy of your resume and be

ready for an on the spot interview. Pre-register

online and get more information:

www.hrcats.com/behind-the-wheel

ON THE SPOT INTERVIEWS FOR
UNION POSITIONS, INCLUDING
BUT NOT LIMITED TO:

= FACILITIES
= FINANCE

« CUSTOMER CARE

REPRESENTATIVES

CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.



L¥9'T0T

S8YETT

€91°12¢

£S¥'1TT

610C m

£Z9'€0T

€20'91C

Z19'shz

99€81¢

T62°LTT

L96'STT

Yov'11e

£€99'€C

T¥T'81T

vZETET

T60°6T¢

7S5°91T

810C m

38Q

"AON

PO

1das

Bny

Anr

aunf

Ae

[y

IR

‘ged

uer

diysiapry

000°05

00000t

000°0ST

000°002

000°05¢

000°00€

RIS IS 4 k)

al6]




sdojs
sNq wajsAs [0303 3y} Jo %5/ T Juasaidas Yym sjuIodawny PIjnpayas 3o painspaw st UDWICLad 3w -ug 310N
ueBWIOIRd Jwl-u) %08 1231e],

%619

%8909

%9T' L9

%I6°L9

610 =

%099

%8°99

%E99

%6°L9

%T'L9

%0°69

%89

%8°L9

%L L9

%98°59

%8€°99

%LL99

810z m

“22q

*AON

10

“ydag

“3ny

Apng

aunf

Aeppy

jdy

Yaew

qed

‘uef

%00°0

%00°0T
%00'0T
%00°0€
S%00°0F
%00°0S
%00°09
%00°0L
%00°08
%00°06

%00°00T

LG Ot R T

oltJ




%S'L6 | %86 | %66 | %566 | paietad sduy sng ps|npayds Jo % 6T0C W
SV’ LE8|STTTS|SE00Z| 9ELT sduj sng pajjsaued 6107 m
%L 86 | %686 | %6'86 | %E'66 | %T 66 | %P'66 %L 66 | %66 | %L 66 | %S 66 |%0E 66| %E 66 | pa1esado sdut sng P3INpayds Jo % 810 @
0'S8E | #'6EE | 0'9CE | 0'9TT | O'F9T | O'V6T | O'E6T | O'TOZ | O'E6 99 €0ve | 9'6¢C sdi) sng pajjaoue) 8107
93Q | AON | 120 | ydes | 'Bny Ainp | aunr | Aepy | |udy | yosew | ged uer
0
00T
00t
ooe
001
00s
009
00L
008
cuorretriadYue~y diron 006
VCC_._._“__ﬂLCﬂb Uia] STy

W3] 345 1901 WA RS

~ olH]




s3uipseoq 000°00T 42d siulejdwo) J5wWoIsn) gz ueys ssa| 198ie]

(44

TLS

L'1E

9°9¢€

6T0T ™

L'y

€Le

€'8€

9°9¢

8'0c

T've

g'Le

T'€EE

6'¢¢

6°S¢T

L'€T

6'TIE

8T0C m

30

*AON

RO

1das

‘Sny

Ainr

aunr

Aen

idy

yaaep

‘q24

‘uef

ot

174

o€

o

0s

sSuipieog 000°00T 42d siuiejdwor Jawolsn)

09

{URLSAS ISMHHL R LT




S3|IA 00000T J3d SIUSPINIY 3|qRIUSARId §°Z 1984e ],

T LT 8's 1 6T0C =
6'T €T €T 8'T 91 LT LT 91 L0 €T T'T S'E 8T0Zm
ag "AON 100 =das ‘Sny Anr aunf Aep [ady yale ‘gad ‘uer
r— 0
T
[4
e
€
b
S
9
L

S9! 000°00T 43d S3U3PIIY 3|qeluanaid

WIBLSAS LISHEHL 3k TH L)

s1dd




€8S'L | ST¥'y | ¢6LT | TTE'E |sS||eD peoy '19g S9IN UBSIA 6T0T =
BLE'Y | TVE'S | TL6'S | T/8'V | €€5'S | 829'9 | 89£'9 | 65T'L | THT'9 | SZI'6 | 8TSOT | TISY |slieD peoy 199 S9[IN UBBIN BTOZ W
vag "AON 190 ‘das ‘Bny Alnr sunf Aenl |udy BN ‘go4 ‘uer

S||e) peoy uaamiag s3I\l Ue3|Al

000T

000%

0009

0008

000°0T

000CT

UIALEAT LSHAAIL LERI M) 80)

o183




TUESDAY, JUNE 4, 2019 ON THE SPOT INTERVIEWS FOR
UNION POSITIONS, INCLUDING

BRCC ARDENDALE SITE o degal i b,
12:00 - 6:00 PM

« MAINTENANCE
* OPERATIONS

« FACILITIES

« FINANCE

CATS is looking to fill up to » CUSTOMER CARE
70 positions before the end of REPRESENTATIVES
2019. Training classes starting
at the end of June 2019.

Please bring a copy of your resume and be
ready for an on the spot interview. Pre-register

online and get more information:
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

www.brcats.com/behind-the-wheel




CATS

CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE

FINANCE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
MAY 16, 2019
Ninth Floor Conference Room
5700 Florida Boulevard

MINUTES

The Finance and Executive Committee met on Thursday, May 16, 2019, at 10:30
a.m. Present at the meeting were members Mark Bellue, Jim Brandt, and Kahli
Cohran. Also present were Bill Deville, Darrell Brown, Dwana Williams, Creighton
Abadie, and members of CATS staff.

IV.

Call to order and establishment of quorum
Mr. Bellue welcomed those assembled.
President’s Announcements

Mr. Bellue noted that he would be requesting to amend the agenda to add
two action items to recommend authorization to award contracts to Pierlott
& Associates and to New Age Industries.

Safety Moment

Ms. Simpson shared a safety moment that centered on safe lifting
techniques at home and at work.

Executive Report and Financials

Mr. Fight shared that the agency hosted a workforce stakeholders meeting
to discuss recruitment of operations and maintenance. He noted that there
were approximately 22 representatives from a variety of agencies in the
community. This is part of the broader initiative to create a pipeline for
talented local candidates. The meeting allowed CATS the opportunity to
announce a job fair organized by CATS called “Behind the Wheel” that will



be held Tuesday, June 4™ from 12:00pm until 6:00pm at the BRCC
Automotive Ardendale site. The job fair will have CATS representatives on
site to interview prospective candidates on the spot.

Mr. Fight shared updated recruitment materials for the Human Resources
department with the commiitee members.

Mr. Rose shared the planning and grants update with the committee and
noted that the agency has submitted its Five Year Program of Projects for
inclusion in the 2019 TIP/STIP. )

CATS met with Pierlott & Associates May 7-9 to review information
requested by the FTA for the triennial review that is scheduled for August 7-

8, 2019.

Mr. Rose noted that CATS has a meeting with Our Lady of the Lake to
discuss service to the new hospital campus.

Chris Handzel and Bryan Jones of HNTB spoke to the committee members
and noted that the redefinition study is nearly complete for the Plank-
Nicholson BRT Corridor project. The environmental clearance is the next
step, and they are working with the SJB Group for the Plank Road BRT
Phase One.

Mr. Jones shared that the project has transitioned from an FTA Smali Starts
Grant application to a BUILD (Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage
Developments) grant application. The BUILD application is due in mid-July.

It was noted that both CATS and the City-Parish will be asked to authorize
additional funds for the project in June to advance the initiative and
complete the grant application. There was lengthy discussion concerning
the grant application, additional requirements, and timelines for the project
advancement.

There was discussion concerning the dates of the CATS Board and the
Metro Council’s consideration of approval to add additional funding to the
Plank-Nicholson BRT Corridor project.

Ms. Dwana Williams updated the committee on the performance measures.
She let the members know that there are currently 134 active operators.

She noted that CATS had 201,647 passenger trips in April and the
percentage of on-time trips was 64.49%. There was considerable
discussion concerning the trips and the on-time performance.




Ms. Williams shared that there were 827 cancelled trips in April and there
were 42.2 complaints per 100,000 boardings. There were 1.4 preventable
accidents in April and there were 7,583 mean miles between road cails.

There was lengthy discussion regarding the performance measures
including questions by committee members relative to performance
measures and methods taken to make improvements. There was a request
to have the number of active operators added to the performance measures
in chart form as well as an in-depth look at research, trends, and
resolutions.

There was discussion regarding the maintenance measures and efforts
taken to research and monitor the agency’s employee retention.

Mr. Deville let the board know that CATS was invited to attend the Baton
Rouge North Economic Development District’s panel titled “Transportation
Drives Economic Development” luncheon. The event was part of the
BRNEDD’s week of events highlighting the NBR area. CATS Board Vice-
President Erika Green was the moderator for the panel discussion and
Board Treasurer Kahli Cohran was part of the group. They were joined by
Dr. Shawn Wilson, LaDOTD Secretfary; Mike Edwards, Director of Aviation at
the Baton Rouge Metropolitan Airport; Bryan Jones of HNTB; and Kelvin
Hill, Easton Baton Rouge Parish Assistant CAO.

CATS was invited to participate in the stakeholder group meetings
regarding the Baton Rouge Zoo and Greenwood Community Park Master
Plans that involved various scenarios for transportation to and from both
venues. ‘

The agency was invited to attend and present a CATS status report to the
members of the Mid-City AARP Group that is represented by members from
across Baton Rouge.

Mr. Deville let the committee know that the SJB engineering team is
collaborating with the HNTB design group, along with the City-Parish DPW
to ensure seamless cooperation and coordination for all station
engineering and amenities design decisions. The team is meeting to
identify and resolve technical and budgetary issues necessary to advance
the Plank Road Phase One and the Plank-Nicholson Phase Two projects.

A preliminary assessment of the BRT stations has been completed by SJB.
The assessment focused on right-of-way limitations, ADA compliance, site
evaluations, and development of conceptual designs. The assessment has
confirmed the suitability and acceptability of the BRT statien locations and
allows the design phase to advance to the utility phase. The sites deemed




unacceptable due to traffics issues, ADA compliance, space limitations,
etc. have been replaced with alternative sites.

CATS and the City-Parish are currently in discussions to review additional
cost requests to cover the NEPA study for the Plank Phase One and Plank-
Nicholson Phase Two projects. The NEPA process is necessary as part of

the grant application process.

Once additional funding has been approved, CATS and HNTB will prepare
support documentation to secure environmental clearance for the Plank
and Plank-Nicholson projects. A Categorical Exclusion is anticipated
permitting both phases to proceed.

Mr. Deville shared that he is finalizing the process to hire a Deputy CEOQ.
There was discussion concerning the process, the hiring committee,
qualifications, and other aspects of the position. Mr. Deville noted that,
while he was putting a panel together to interview the candidates, he would
have the final decision in the person hired for the position.

Mr. Rose informed the committee that CATS will be receiving in the near
future $2.9 miliion or so from ECHO draws reimbursing CATS for preventive
maintenance. Mr. Deville stated that these funds could be used to
replenish the board reserves.

When asked the status of the monthly financials, Mr. Deville indicated that
there are no financials to present to the group. The audit firm is still
working to produce financials. Board Treasurer Mr. Cohran shared that he
has discussed the audit with the audit firm and is waiting to schedule a
committee meeting to review the final audit. There was considerable
discussion related to the status of the agency’s financials and projects that
have not been budgeted.

Mr. Bellue moved to amend the agenda to include recommendations to
award a professional services contract to Pierlott & Associates and to
award a professional services contract to New Age Industries. Mr. Brandt
seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment and there was
none. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Recommend authorization of award of contract to Pierlott & Associates for
professional services

Mr. Darrell Brown let the committee know that Pierlott & Associates has
done work under two separate contracts with CATS for DBE Program
assessment and improvements and for FTA compliance review.




VI.

CATS is requesting that the board authorize the CEO to enter into a
contract with Pierlott & Associates for an estimated amount of $144,349.

Mr. Brandt moved to recommend the full board authorize the CEO to enter
into a contract with Pierlott & Associates for an amount not to exceed $147,
349 and Mr. Cohran seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public
comment and there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no
abstentions.

Recommend authorization to award contract to New Age Industries for
professional services

Mr. Deville shared that Paul Toliver with New Age Industries has worked
with CATS as an advisor while the agency looked to fill the COO position,
He has proven to be an invaluable asset for Mr, Deville, and Mr. Deviile
would like to have Mr. Toliver back with the agency in the position of
Interim Deputy CEO. He is assisting the agency with the placement of the
permanent Deputy position.

There was discussion of the amount of money being requested for the
contract as well as the length of the contract’s duration.

Following the discussion, the matter was deferred so that more information
could be provided to the committee.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.




CAHTS

CAPITAL RREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
504/COMMUNITY RELATIONS COMMITTEE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
MAY 15, 2019
Ninth Floor Conference Room
5700 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA

MINUTES

The 504/Community Relations Committee met on Wednesday, May 15, 2019, at 10:00
a.m. Present at the meeting were Linda Perkins, Bill Deville, Dwana Williams, Karen
Denman, Mr. Terrance Durousseau, members of CATS staff, and Bryan Basford of MV
Transportation.

Introduction

Ms. Perkins welcomed those assembled and thanked them for coming. She
noted that the committee would begin meeting on a monthly basis moving
forward in order to more closely track the customer complaints.

MV Transportation Report —
Mr. Basford of MV Transportation noted that MV recently switched technology
platforms to Trapeze. This is an industry technology pioneer and will better

assist MV with scheduling trips, dispatching, and other aspects of the service.

CATS On Demand had 7,785 scheduled trips in April. Of the scheduled trips,
6,847 were completed; 572 were cancellations and 366 were no-shows.

Mr. Basford noted that 41% of the trips were subscription and 59% were demand
trips.

Mr. Basford shared that there were 12 complaints for the month.
Mr. Basford noted that the on-time performance for the month was 87.3%.
It was noted that the “no-shows” are trending higher and there was discussion

concerning this topic. Ms. Denman shared that her department is still working to
update the CATS On Demand Policy that will reflect stricter penalties for no-



V.

shows. She noted that the ADA group will work with Communications to
produce a mailer to alert customers of the new policy and rules. Customers who
have no-shows will be faced with service suspensions.

Mr. Basford shared that Trapeze will assist with tracking customers who have
no-shows.

There was discussion concerning the number of operators for the CATS On
Demand and Mr. Basford let the committee know that he is fully staffed with the
exception of the extra board.

Certifications — Karen Denman

Ms. Denman let the committee know that CATS has been working with MV for
one year and things have worked weli since the initial transition last May. She
noted that the customers are pleased with the service and have been patient
through the transition from one provider to another.

Ms. Denman informed the members that the recertification process began in
March and is progressing siowly to certify those given temporary eligibility as
well as the regularly required recertifications.

Ms. Denman shared the certification numbers for March and April for CATS On
Demand. She noted that there were 14 customers certified in March and 32 in
April. There were no temporary certifications and one was deemed ineligible in
March and one was deemed ineligible in April.

Ms. Denman noted that of the 14 certifications in March, five were
recertifications, and 11 of the 32 in April were recertifications.

Customer service — Angella Wynn and Dwana Williams

Ms. Wynn noted there were 85 total compiaints received in April. There were 38
that required corrective action and there were aiso two commendations for the

month.

Ms. Wynn shared there were 15 complaints for being passed up, two for
courtesy, and 21 for performance.

Ms. Wynn let the committee know that, in April, the Customer Care Department
fielded an average of 1,220 calls daily and customers were on hold an average of
22 seconds.

There was considerable discussion related to the customer complaints and what
is being done by Operations and Customer Care to combat the complaints, Ms.
Wynn shared that she would like to institute a campaign in her department
telling the representatives to let their smiles be heard and she wants to have a
campaign to roll out the red carpet for the customers.




Discussion of operator training — Dwana Williams

It was noted that the Operations Department is still conducting ongoing operator
training when infractions occur. Ms. Williams shared that there is currently
training being done for Smith Systems refreshers, ADA training, and electric bus
training.

There was discussion regarding the electric buses and questions of when they
would go into service. It was noted that the hope is for the buses to be in service
on June 30" when the new run cut takes effect; however, the inspections for the
buses have not been completed at this time. .

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.




puewsag % uonduasqns % m

0
50
L
| ST
€

|
- 5%

AdiAndnpoud (Hdd) AnoH 434 sia8uassed
[BOD w1

judy yauep| Alenuga4 Alenuef BELITELETg] Jaguwisnop 134010 bnEuEmm 1sndny nr aunf
- ] - S— . - . %0°SL
%058
= - %006
- %0°56

%086 %0°86

— — R - - - %0°00T

(d10) @2uewiopidd sawi]-uQ



99¢
(44
L¥89

S8LL
judy

S8LL

80¢
0€9
LELY
SL9L
yauep

ol
80
0€
LEL

SL9L

182 0TE
Z8S 859
€90L T6SL
9¢6L 6ve8
>Lm=hnmu >Lm=:m—

—— = ﬂA
9Z6L

6128

(44
TL9
€V99
YIEL

Joquialag JaquUIBAoN

(43
TL
£V9

vIEL

LT ove 6S¢C
o 0zo 8€9
160L il 8499
SELL T9¢€8 TEZL
J3qopp Jequeidas
All =
oy 65
(174 8¢
_ 8L9
Ll T€TL
SELL {74
19g8

€€T
s0s
€798

8116
1snsny

.

S0

€19

8116

114 667
0s9 €59
9TvL T6¥9
9908 09sL
Aing aunf

g h B

ss mm_
0s €S

09sL
9908

moys-oN/pajasue)/palsjdwo) “sa sdiil pajnpayds

Aep
Suu—
66

14747
08s
66t
vL8S

LA

suolje||saue) JaquInN =
sdi] pelejdwo)
sdii ] pajnpayss m

0001

000¢

oooe

000¥

000s

0009

000L

0008

0006

00001



syurejdwo) # s|jed peoy #

SHEYD[SAYM [BIOL -~ SISpIY [e10L W

jady yoseiny Alenigad Asenuer Jaqusiag JaquiaaoN 1240120 Jaquialdag 1sndny Ajnr aunr
9
| __—44447 ——_#4___
- | £069
— = = ) ZLvL LIEL
0S8L 9908 vS6L 6L6L
8 LLV8 06¥8
15¢€6

Aepy
JNH#AAAA—

S0Zs

000T
0007
00oE
000%
000s
0009
000L
ooog
0006

0000T



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

Lisa M Sanchez, CPPB
Procurement Manager
Isanchez@brcats.com

breats.com

CHTS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

April 5, 2019
MEMORANDUM
To: William “Bill” Deville, CEO
From: Lisa M Sanchez, Procurement Manager

Darrell Brown, CAO and Project Manager

Subject: Recommendation for an Award of Consultant Contracts
Pierlott & Associates, LLC - FY2019 Compliance Assistance
(for FY2019 FTA Comprehensive Oversight Review) and
DBE Program Improvements

In 2018, CATS Planning Committee had questions about its DBE Program. In
response, CATS engaged Pierlott & Associates, LLC (hereinafter called
“Pierlott”) to assess and comment regarding proposed and needed
improvements to CATS DBE Program. (Because Pierlott has conducted
numerous FTA Triennial Reviews and contracted with other FTA grantees
providing Compliance Assistance, Pierlott was deemed qualified and selected
to assist CATS in a number of respects). A contract was approved by the CEO,
and in August 2018, Pierlott's efforts included a report presented at F&E
Committee meeting.

The initial contract with Pierlott in the amount of $23,140 expired in December,
2018. At that time, CATS recognized that it also required the assistance of
Pierlott with the upcoming FTA Triennial review. Pierlott proposed to address
CATS Triennial needs through a Comprehensive Oversight Review
Compliance contract. CATS contracted with Pierlott in February, 2019 for the
Compliance Assistance.

Now the Procurement Office would like to either amend the expired contract
with Pierlott or enter into a new contract to include follow-up services related to
the proposed DBE Program Improvements.

Current CEO Contract Authority
In view of the recent opinion of legal counsel to CATS Board relative to the
CEQ's authority to award contracts, and in an effort to avoid the appearance of
artificial subdivision of contracts with Pierlott, this matter is being brought to
F&E Committee for consideration.

The Board'’s current resolve relative to the CEQ’s contracting authority is set
forth below:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Capital Area Transit
System that the CEQ or his designee is authorized to execute contracts on



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

brecats.com

CATS

CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

behalf of CATS or to obligate CATS to agreements, without approval from the
Board of Commissioners, for (a) matters involving $50,000 or less annually, or
(b) vehicle parts, provided that non-vehicle matters involving $20,000 to
$50,000 shall be reported to the Board.

While the policy, as written, does not state a dollar limit applicable to individual
vendors, the conservative interpretation would be to limit the aggregate dollar
amount of all contracts awarded to a given vendor in any given year to
$50,000. Irrespective of the Board’s intent, the Procurement Office wants to err
on the side of full disclosure and complete transparency.

Proposed Contract Awards

CATS CEO has already signed a Contract with Pierlott for Comprehensive
Oversight Review Compliance. That contract is for $47,857. It contains
options for additional tasks in the amounts of $17,800 (Corrective Action
Support) and $30,000 (Post-Review Assistance for the FY2019 FTA Oversight
Review), for a maximum estimated amount of $95,657.

Pierlott's proposal to provide DBE Program Improvements, if accepted, would
result in a contract for an estimated amount of $48,692 for services
contemplated through December 31, 2019.

Both contracts, with options (if exercised), could total an estimated $144,349.

Contract Award Recommendation:

CATS Procurement Office and the Project Manager request the Board's
approval of the two (2) aforementioned contracts to Pierlott, for an estimated
amount of $144,349 for the term of January 1, 2019 through December 31,
20109.



99:098'001§ [2ro'toz - [16°009'08 [z0'9s1'018 |eL L1068  |6LE'EL ovo°LZ 88z’/91 [1esoL

99°098'90L%

00°0% ers'e 901AI2S ON| 921A19S ON| 991A19S 991]| 991At0S ON| 901Al0S ONIEPS'E urel] Bep ;amnys Ajsiaalun waynog 08
6.'606°'L$ 602G asinlos oN| @o1a10S ON(62°606' 1% 921AI3S ON| 92IAI2S ON{GOZ'G sdolg pajlwi pAld BpUols| .21
TT'190'es  |L0S'Y 5¥TLS 95 70¢S ¥1289'7% 0cz 0¥s 181'¢ iqeq j Qisisaun wisyinog f [euiuua)] S1vo| 02
£2ZeVS Z06 00°0% BT 62074 el LG geg lojenaal) Jeslpel| 09
62°86L'cs  |90's 9z'z0z$ 91'792% 18'119'C$ Goe 89G Z5L'y 1DUsyaQ f ug IeaN,O / PAIG BPLIOI] 35BS  B§
cooer'es |o0g'y 901AIS ON (L ¥ ¥1eS 9e°'GeL'ZS a31A8s ON| LOS 66.°¢ JausyaQ j u [ESN,Q / pAIg Aesinod| 85
YS'E62°0LS  |P6T'SL 97'6£9% £6°.89% G£'09/'8% EEL'L 9e85°L GZ97) u usbaig f py sBulds [lamuaaig [ palg 1Salod poomlayg| /S
S£71y0'9% [661°0L 00'26€% 112468 86°780'G% €19 S00'1L 1858 As1onun WIOYINOS f Moduly oa38 Al [ YHON AMH auldly|  ¥§
8z'LLL'ols  (628°1z  [98°00:$6  |88'E00'L$  |pSo00'6$ |s0L'L €05 LLZ'LY NST/PY pusybiy|  Lv
99°589'v¢ €111 £0EleS 9.'20%% L9'696'€S ¥LG ¥EL G98'G aBiaqne,] [ alepies f eueno)|  9¥
LLY6LYLS  |0BLOE GL6TT IS [CB9Z9'LS |FGIEETLIS  |86L'Z zog'c 0e5'ee pald epiold| ¥
10°98T°0bS  |SEL°8) $G#99% Z9'890°LS  |S9205'8% Sl ¥eZ'e GGO'GL pa Mueld| Ly
08°7zg'e$  [69L'G 16'881% 55'292% 1197828 1e8 Let 2106 1gaeysod| €2
slozg'es  |PIl'e 86179 09'95¢$ LLIVTES 18€ 639 ¥0L'G aAy swnoquipy|  ZZ
zI09s'es  [Blge 1G'€62$ SZ'02¥3 06°9¥3'2% 505 9Lz 1BZ'S aay spiewied| 1z
zeoes'vs  |ole'e 96'c61% IR Tag) 0.°062'%3 zey €09 629/ Amuy] ueipeoy yuoN| 02
gysoL'ys  |228'9 220523 ¥1'9ers [068¥'cS$ ka7 806 B¥S'S lleiN euepo) f puelsBil| g8l
LL'886'P$S  [Zev'0) 01°0c€$ ¥S 6273 19'922'v% 295 £06 1¥6'9 pysuppad| £}
oo.ow 9 SIAIDS ON | 22IAJ9S ON| OIIALDS 99l1]] 2MALSS ON| 2DIAI8S ON|O OINYS MiEd _O“—_n_mo 9l
91'606°'L$  [GZ0'E G6'LLLS 0 vELS LS EeysL$ LLZ 99¢g 788°C yuomsal) f pY Junold / syeQ U9 §i
00°9£92%  |LELS 9.°251% L2 2ves £0'9.2'2$ GlZ Z6h yoc'y 1S HoAssooy {10 ydjsg sewoyl| ¥l
slzsv'es  |ogL's 81223 61 ¥¥es 8G°086°'2$ L6t e L¥8'9 AMH UOSISNAN /1S Juawaaon|  Z1
89°v90°Z$  |vBET GZ'LoLS GEELETS 8y 169°1% CFE oLy Gzl BJIAPUEJODS / DAY PUZL [ JOJBINDALD SPISULON LI
0z'LEY'es  |e9v'L 0e0gL$ 86°88€$ Z6'1Z1'eS 16T 0G/ 96%'9 a||lApuUe|}og { AjsISAlUN WBYINOS [ AMY Jusog| 0L
8Z¥i11$  |95972 o¥'001% €2 4218 S9'0r6$ 162 182 bLL'z DoYg/aay Bunop sng| g

INNIATY |diysiepiy | Aepung | Aepames | Aepyoom Aepung | Aepinjeg | Aepyaap JUIEN TINnOY Jaquuny
AINON
V1oL ANNIATH dIHSY3ar

6102 ddv




0 0 o] 2] a sAeq Aousblaug

Gl & G [ c sAepung jo Jaguny

{4 G g Fl ) sAepinjeg jo Jequinpy

) \Z 0z 0z \Z sAepyaap Jo Jaquinn

=oL Dag AON 10 deg By mp unr Kem ady el a4 uer
lsoo'srg o [o o Jo frves0e JresTeee |ssg'zoe Joze'sre SdlelL OFMNIINA TYL1O0L|
S9E 0 0 0Lk 192 GLOZ/EZ/Z0 20IAIas papud)ssadxgumoamegraodny|  =0F
Bl 119°e 020'S 95T amnyg Asianun waymog| 08
a0 6502°S 256 yos's LE0'S sdo}g PO PAE BPPO| B2
0L0°ZL 105% BEC ¥ SOL 6L Jeeg [ MisIaAlun WeayInog J [RUMLAL S1VD] 0L
ozh e 206 LLO'L B 952 JoEInzag eoipsll| 09
Fie0Z 980 Zle'c REEXE 65V 12UsyYs) [ U1 B8N0/ PAlg epiojdIsea| &S
WEF 002F 00,7 599y L106'% J2usyd0 f U [eaN,0 / P Aesnad]  gg
LbL'LS PEC Sl Z7L'GL e SPEL Pu sbupdg [[sMuaals) § pAlg 359104 pooaalg 15
SSP'0L 0 [} G677 096G BLoz/cE/20 921AI0s pepUapMgRieL T oiisrag e tien]| 99
£9E'G 0 0 [ 18 BLOZ/EZ/20 201AIBS papus)DSHa S+ PAigepHOLISed| &8
P81 'St 661 DL £06'0L 20Tk 0COTH Hodiry on3s | f AIsseaf) UlaUinog 7 GHON ARH Uiy g
/04T [§ i EErAD SEFL 6102/22/20 2010138 popus)ieyemondased| &
/%' 0 0 £90'C e 6L02/£2/20 20IMIBS papus) iRy SEQelD| 08
/0296 5/6'LT 5y 7T Q61 7T LBS'GE Ns1/Py PueluBH] ¥
ERER eLLs GO5'G 0 i} Broz/rz/zo eoives webad ablaqne  f alapies | BURLIOD 9%
seol 0 0 3925 £8E'C 6L0Z/£2/20 22IA1as papualeBleqre 11070 opieD| Y
95572l 051.°0¢ 66'0C clETE 66608 PAIG BpLUSH]  w¥
22208 cel'8l EEE3 S0z L2 SE¥ 0T paURl] i
2CE'ET 692G 159G 6619 £0LS igiejsof| €2
23182 vila ©008°9 200°2 9808 SAY Jumoquipi 22
0cL's2 BiG'9 £29'9 cSc9 12L's oAy spayey|  1E
PBE 0P 0/6'8 1210k 00,0k €550 Amyl uelpedY yUON| 0T
66162 1788 £9C L 543 voL'L W eueno) j puepabil| gL
ELPFY Zer 0L ettt BLB 0L BT Pd supad|  ZF
BEc g £8 L erl K301l %lied jojden 9L
095’9 GZ0'e €306 8 ) 6L0Z/42/Z0 02indas ueDag yHomsei [ pa wunelg|  §i
0626 Igi’s e STE¥ 9T Y 35 Werescoy 710 Hdieq seweul| v
Es9'se 5818 1188 2806 6956 AR uosialer IS JusluwBAGD | ZL
I S 8207 681 VLIY SiliApLEROS / 2AY PUZL [ JCIBINAND BPISWRION| 1L
LEE0E EGra EIGY s 807, fysaeatun wapnog { AMH oluaag| ol
Zog'LL 559°T 15L°E /00'E BV6'C Doud / 24y Bunoj sng ]
[ersesr | | {2657101 [ zsoozr  fezs'ivd JLos ¥zl (sisuei) jsid Ag pajerado) spesp aebll] NS |
ez Jaquiasag | sequsacy 1840320 1anuialdag 1snbny A sung Aew judy yosen fieruda Adenuer ETECEGEEIREEI Y
31N0y

B10Z 10} QLA 3oy




LLYLL $ |ecl - $]0 (6L0Z/€2/Z0 @2ini8s papud) ssalidxg umojumoq j Moday| €01
- $ |8ss'e 8JlAISS Bal EYPS'E aINygs AsIaAlun ulaynog| g
2e81g’lL $1g/6°g 681°606°| $ |602°S sdo)s pajiwil] pAlg BpMOld| 22
12°861'2 $ [80E'F 22 1L90°e $ 205y Iaxeg ; Aisiealun uwisynos / [eullia ] S1vo| 02
18°6l% $[L¥8 A AN 4 $ |206 Jo3eIN2ID [eJIPIIN| 09
JA $|eSLY B2'8S1l°¢E $ 1980°G JausyaQ ; u [eaN.O / PAIG EPHOCId ISET] 65
26°'160°¢ $ |602°S €0 0ev'e $ |ooE'y JausysQ f U7 [BeN,O / PAIG AssInoD| 8§
£0'2eL'6 $ |e80'vL ySe620L $ [¥62'SL Py sBuudg [jomuaals) [ PAIg }sal04 poomiays| IS
8¥°066'} $ |L¥0'% - $ |0 (610Z/52/20 @21nt0s papus) pAlg BiB] [ U BIISNIQ / {IBIN O3 11BIN| 9%
1676681 $[1e6'e - $ |0 (6102/£2/20 @21010s popuUd) DTdg 4S / PAIF BPLIOIL ISe]| &S
01°709'G $ |88¢'6 GeI¥0'9 $ (661701 Hodiy onepy / AisioAluN uiayinog [ UHoN AMH sullly|  +S
£1°C06 $19L1L°L - $ |0 {6102/c2/20 @21/u0$ popud) JoyeNoIID Jved| 2§
9.'L¢8 $ |p2e'l - $ |0 (6L02/c2/20 90In1aS papud) 10je[NIL) SHeQ USD| 05
8E¥.IGEL $ |eev'ee gz’L2'0l $ |646°12 NS/ Py PUBiYbIH| ¥
- $ 10 99°689'y $lELL'L (6L0Z/#2/20 @3in1as uebHaq) abiagne,T [ alapleo [ BUBMOD| OF
veL29°¢E $ 1288 - $ |0 (610z/c2/Z0 @21ni8s papue) obiagne, /1070 / 249pien| oF
PSe09'%L $ |ee6'ce LE¥6l vl $ |o6lL°0¢€ pAlg epuOId] b
60°LZL LY $ (9¥Z' 12 L0'9¢Z'0l $ 168281 pd Mueld| Iy
65CvL'C $|16¥C 08°2¢gc $ |694°G ig teised| €¢
€e'/9/°¢ $ 16569 G023’ ERLZAN: SAY SUINOqUIM| 2T
£€6/68°C $ |6ETY 2.09G°¢ $ 8169 SAY spiRudied| 12
€9°220°'G $ |8v0'6 28°0€6'% ${046'Q Amy] ueipesy yuoN| 0Z
6 8eF € $ €899 8F Gol'v $12/8'9 jlel eueno) [ puepabll) gl
9¢°'G56'S $ |eev'el 11°886'% $ |ZE¥0L Py supisd| I}
- ¢ (9 891AIDS 931 9 Kojjoi] yied |oyiden| gL
- $ |0 9.°606°1 ¢ lezoe (6L02/72/20 9oirtes Uebaq) yUomsalg [ pY junojg| St
696.8°L $ |g6E'E 00°9/9°C $|LEl's 1S HaAesooy fag udjeq sewoyl| i
G0'lgg's $ 1685'01 GL'ZGF'E $ jogl'e _ AmH uosisyar /1S JUSWUIBA0D  Z]
9¢2/0'e $ |0y 89¥90°C $ |¥ece SIIAPUBROIS [ OAY DUZ/ [ 101BINDIID SPISYHON| L)
0£°120°c $181E'L 02 1£9'¢ $ |e9v'L Aysiaajun wiaynog ; AmH o1uasg| 0L
¥2 190 $|eeey - TN $ |959'¢ 00ug / eay Bunoj sno| 8
ANNIATY dIHSY3aAa INNIATH dIHSYH3AAI s3aLnod| #
8Loe 6102

610¢ 11ddV




Sadlnesg
Hpny |eulsixy
uoisuad
‘suondo |emaual Jeak-auo 8L/LE/ZL 2 SIVD
Z Uim ‘0zoz ybnosyl 810z ul Bulpus sies A Jepusie) 104 Bujpua 1pEIUCD Bunsixa SL/EL/LL siesh ¢ 1oeIUOD =B
‘BL/QE/QL UO _uwcmn_o ddy ‘pieog [N} 0} aA0oW O} Um_;o._anm ue mom_aw._ 0} s80Ineg Um;oLQQ( 104 Ooo.mvrw 9]|IAIB) BN B $30IA12G g S
23WWo) 394 — 81/8/LL peacsdde pieog - gL/EL/LL UPNY [euisix3 10} 44y pleog lZ0z 98g | 6lL0Oz uer | 1sopxoiddy | eyemyjepisod d=y Hpny
siiejjy/ ejeiodiog pue '] | jusiBingold ‘sueneiadg
‘Buisiuenpy g Bunadiepy  ‘woddng  Ulwpy  [RlRUSD
‘8oURLI4 S YoNns 'AIesseosu Se 'SLyD Joj SIIAISS JBUI0
pue 3Ry apnjoul 0} sadnes 'GL/EL/C dlsaeM SlvD uo
pajsod pue peingysip 89 0] DY — 61/8/2 "SS0IAIBS ||eo-Uo 600-SE2IAIBSED
IRV Lol 1o} dIH enssiel 0) S0 (8Nsgem S yD U0 puB | Sa0IAISS |[B2-LO JRY-UoU -UO-BL0Z
SI0pUSA 0] [IBLWS BIA) PB|[EOUED SI DY — 6LIFLIE ‘6L/9L/S | 10} ¥ anssial Im S1YD i
uo anp s|esodol ] ‘wdz 1B §1/2 L/ U0 play 8q 0) 80UaI8juod (pajj@auey) ast S80IAIBS S32IA13S ||ED-UQ
1esodoid-aid "Sa0IAag |[ED-UQ 10} PRIIDIOS dJH — 61/SZ/E | S82IABS (|BD-UO 10} DAY ag.l agL agy 3500 x0iddy asgi I8y SOoIAIRS JRY
018 .mwc_co_wE 12011 pUB SHsS0oy _w_u._m__On_ \ﬁﬁ.mw
‘Bunyby ‘ssjoeldaocas ysel) ‘syoes ayq ‘Buness ssbusssed
‘sanljoe) Jabuassed pasopus .mm:ﬂQ S 8Alp 'sainjonls
Adoueo ‘sfeq Bupped sng sinjea) |m senioe; pauueld L0€L# dd
8L "BUO S| ISIUSD NISUBIL MEN 2I9UM ‘SIBJUBD JOJSUEI 19)UBD) YISUBL | S AJ Hsuell ¥aN
sng Jofew y Jo sauas e jo Juswdojaaap ay} ayepspun 0 | abnoy uojeg YUON au} 10} agl ubisag S8dlAles
w4 juawabeuepy S1yD Jad awn sy} Je pjoy uQ — 6L/ LY saoines ubisaq Joy D4y ag.l ag.l aglL 1509 xoiddy agl EkiAd :m_mwn_ I8Y
124 payini|os jou D4y ‘Suolesypads |EDILYS)
ay} Bunsaw ) Jepplg aAisuodsal 1samo| ay) Buluiwieap ul Gop-ubisagisanuaWY
SpI UONONASUOD BUY UM SO ISISSE OS[B [[IM JUB}nSUcD -6102 DY
ublseq 0@ ‘sadeospueT  'sysopy 'sigleus  apnjoul PEBH Hd
M "BL/LL/Y LD WEQQ:QL 38 anp Slesodold ‘pajolos dinb3 pajeiay
sem DY - 6L/8Z/E Bugesw pieog GLOZ aunt el | juewdinb3 pejejey | [
1e pieme o} ue|d pue ‘aun iy} e Wweuy Buneniers s) O34 | PUE seUBLY JISUBL] o) agl uBisaq 299Al0S
PUE ‘juswainooid Aq peaeos) aiem siesodold — GL/LLIP | Seonies ubisaq 10} DAY agl agi aal 1500 xoiddy aglL amy uBiseq 39y
"81/62/8 :9jeq BuluadQ jesodold elsgam S1/# ¥d "PAIg
SlvD uo pajsod ‘Isi| JOpuSA ©) JUSS UCKEJUNOU pue e|d ® py yuejd
pasniape si D4y MaN — 8L/2/g "Bujobuo |Ins suonenieag — safl|ioe) Jisuel} mau (ow g}) (owgy) suonels 139
8L/0L/0} "Gr'S WoJ} 6§ ¥1G'ZZES JO JUNOWIE BU) LI 180 [BUY | SpNjDUl O} "PAG Bl B PY 8L/EL/LL agL asL ssoineg s391 AIBS
paABoal S1VO — 81ISZ/0) "PIBOg Iy 0} 8A0W 0} panoidde | NUB|H UO SUOHELS | HE 10} panoiddy :ajeq :@leq 000'czeS oM ubisaq *
SajlWWoe) 394 — 81/8/LL Pencidde pieog - gL/gL/LL | Seo1uas ubisaq Jo) D4 pieog pajewnsy | pajewns3 | 1sop xouddy | ‘dnoun grs I9Y ubiseq 33V
dwo) siayJopp
. OB [k [EmOUG!  Aiger] sng
91/11/8 10BnUOD Bunyeas (suneo dwon [efbele SIsien pua
jo |[emaual panocidde pieog S1VD — 9L/0E/8 "PRzZIRUY | SISNIOM pue Alliqer] 193]y S0IMSS dwon 1ayJopn
[eMauRl JOBNUOD - QL/6/6 [EMSUBI YOW 9 B 8q | ‘SuoHeB)SeAU] ‘Seoies 02/62/Z Oz/e/z g | LRI JaIsnipy » Ajjger
1M 10B8U00 Siy) Jebeuep j0alold Jad — L1/1Z/L “panoidde wieln Jojsnipy Jof yBnoiy ‘B6L/BEIT S! mwﬁwcww _Hw : dnous j@9|4 sng
384 — LL/0L/8 - peroiddy pieog — 21/GL/g "panoidde | joequod sesh ¢ jeurbio) |[Emausy a18p pua m_wumm A\ L_._oh: juswabeuep swie|)
384 — 81/S1L/Z "pancidde pieog — g1/0Z/z 1B9A BUO 10} | 61/8Z/Z — 8L/L/E 10 pouad ancuddy weuny BL/L/E pajepdn swie|n d4y 2
panssi J0BJJUOD MON — gL/L/E "parcsdde pieog — 6L/SL/L |emaual panciddy pieog 0} pieog 02/62/Z [emauay 0] J3jay umoug ELIIWETS d3)sn —UG‘
Y
SJUBIWO? | SAION pepiaoid paaoiddy ajeqg 3jeq e awenN adA | uonduosag
jonpold /SaolAlRg pieog puz uels Jopusp 1uon 82IAI9S
Syjuouwi ¢ 0} | UiyHm uooy pieog Buipuad syoaloid = an|g _ mou |eposddy pieog spaau | Wwa)| UoIIOY = MO A _ 6102 ‘Lz Ael

pleog S1Vv9 404 bunsi juswainosoid S1VI




‘JoeqUOD [emausdy Bulpuswiwosay 1eye 03D @8s
‘BL/LE/E MUY LL/L/ JO pouad |emsust Joj [erolddy pleog
SPasu J0BNUOD — LL/LZ/E 10BIUO0D JO |lemausl panoidde

pieog - [L/LZ/S PBOUCY |emausy Buipuswwosey
;epe] 03D 89S BL/LEE NI 8L/ 0 pouad SUNOSED
lemaual Jo) pasciddy pieog — LL/0Z/S ‘@ouspuodsaliod Leog Ny} PUE [2S81(
e uo paidod Ssem 8SEUIING J4-D 8y} puB oJBIjENd 2|qeiBAR | pL/EL/8 UD (Bdd) ARLIIEINEG 6L0Z/LE/E
im pouBis pue pazijeuy Sem JORAUCD — 8L/9Z/E USLEd sigmaual | oeiend | [ebied soud | “UOHEIRlOS rilfy panaiddy
A1p Agq penoidde ‘oeijjeng Ag joenuoD paubisse sem ‘ws)sAs Buisuadsip 0zZ/LElE 1eak suo 0} pleme =xel +93 | YSHed Ao eI e
IO PIUSUBY JEU} UONBOLIOU panisday — gL/g/0l "pleog jony ay u sjedped nJyj [Emaual | G/M Juo2 paacidde | wpeggppg | (PBLLIBN Aq SIVD 9 g-0 JuIop
yoiely o) 0B |Im SIYL "SIV Payou pue Jesk auo o) o1 Ayus sjeledas e 123k auo 8ok z IoUnon +SI1dO pauBisse sem) used | aulloses pue
pemaual sey ysued AID — 61/8/z “PercIddy 394 — 6L/PLIE | Se UONEONOS [eny #L0Z Ul | Jopeaciddy | jsund | onsp 4O | Adag o I'o A0 HI9SEO P
N0 JUSS JOBJUOD [EMBUSY ‘parctdde pieod — 6L/6L/E | SLVD papnpul ystied Ao 0} pieog 0Z/LE/E0 PLILO/LL 3o1d 110 Pialsuep Ag d4y [2ssiQg |end
1A 1ad €/z°959% = Jeak Jad 202
‘LL/€T/Z UO WNPUSPPY BIA N0 sasuodsal L£1'82€% Jo sjuswded g ) ybnouyy (sasng Bie oL)
N0 uim /1/0z/z Aq aley enp ssumbuj “ZL/Z/e OBA | gggf)1z'pe 1500 [BI0L (zv ‘eepsnoog) sieak aseyoingd/
anp sjesodoid "SUONNISUI [euBUY BidRnw O} PRYONOS | poyad Jeak 4 Jono Aed ‘sieak dio9 [eyden i aseor]
dd4¥ = ZL/g/z "sasng B 01 40} si Buoueuly “jeacidde toj sasng BIo 01 LLZIE / o} sasng alland c.mu:mf
pIeoq jin} 0} srow o} wieyl panoidde 34 - L1/9L/E "SSNG | soueuly sseUDING/ESEST panosdde [esaig Bio EJuawy U Sha
Biio 01 jo Bupueuy panoidde pieog — LL/1Z/E sng jeudeD pieog 20210 | 2lozidy | o @oueuly jo oueg d4d Buroueur4
el
"slaquwaw D3d 8y Aq
pajoslas se paimisu| D13 Bulpuswwossl OID SIVD O [BMBUSI BUO YJiM
Ja)ja| p/eme 10} UOEpUSLLILLIOTS) 8L} paledald Juswaindold 99| MBUBI 01 | GLZ'ZE$ PPE [emaual 0z1L'89% 61/0E/¥ St 31ep pus
8LIELIY '8L0Z ‘9l |udy uo joenuod | panoidde UONEPUSLWWOd3] Q3D 0] | PUE 19BJUOD 10BQUOD (6102 m>m>._:m
pieog S1YD "SPUN) 8I0LU IO) SHSE) [BUOHIPPE UM [EMBUSI 1BJ9Y  SLEC0LS 40 150D [EMaual 1eaf aug G et uoIoBISIIES
aAoidde pue meinel 0} IR4 6L/LLIP SYHSE) pappe 1o} [B10} pamaual B e Jeah anoidde 612'75% PPY) aymnisuj 308G g =
Junowe [euolippe/Mm [emauss parcsdde pieog — 6L/9LIp & 80m} SASAINS pieog 0} pieog 0Z/08 /¥ 6L/LIS SIE'E0LS 213 1nsuog Jswoisny
Mmainey JubBisiang 1oy 198'1¥% MalAaY
IUEBJSISSY MBIASY-1S0d yBisianp
‘Uoddns uonoy aAoalon anisuayaidwon
‘lencidde 03D J0j poYSaIY) BU) UILIM :$¥se) apnjoul 0} 6102 e o V.14 610ZA4)
SEM UDIUM ‘/G8'/¥$ 10} 61/G/Z UO pajnoaxa SEm JOBIUCD |BluLBY | W14 Bulwosdn 1928102 o Uro o1 90UB}SISSY
[BUIBLO "8LIOLIR "6VE'PPLS JO JUNOWE JDRHUOD |B)0} B 10} jo uonesedald Ym | Od JorNUOD Z60'96% PPY) S9)el00ssy aoinag "
267'96% J0 spuny |euonippe aroidde o) pieog — 61/LZ/5 | SLYD ISISSE 0} JuB)Nsu0D USRI 6L/LE/8 8LIVEIZ) BrE'PYLS 2 Noyiald wnsuop | @2ueljdwo)
. *Jau00s Jo sAep Qg 1X8u el UILym Jho | e 1 :
spiq sy aaey o} Buidoy ate app "spuny jesepa Buisn | RPN T oWl |
'SiBySeM S Z Joj “al0[duI0D 1soule ‘peyeip Buieq | *u0 Meu ik Soeide,
SI g1l — 6L/8/Z INOC puUas pue dzijeul} 0] JUSWSINI0L 0} I0pUSA "SIBLSEM SNY Q07N Hd
10} pamalral Buieg gi| 40 yelp jeuld — 6L/ZIv "wdg | (z) om 10) uoneyDIOS AU SIalUsepq sng
18 61/62/5 ‘e1ea Buuedo pig peydlios g1| — L/Z/S | Buidopnap s)juawainaosd | g 000'00¥% 153 asi gLl uonanisuoy
‘610 "9 UdJIBN "WdpO:E
:@]e eng pig ‘ISl| JOPUSA 0} PajiewW pue 3}ISqam O}
g1 persod S1vO — 61/9/z "7 ‘dnoi9 uonoNsUoD s
Aoy xmuu_n 1semo| 0] pleme Buipuswwooal i A A sooe be 3l 10 bOE L4 Hd
S! pue ‘spiq € paaledal S1y0 "pauado spig — 61/9/€ g.1| — J21ua) lsuel | 6LOZ/BLIE 2ouenss| 971 ‘dnoug J8jua)
‘panolddy 394 — GLIVLIE "61/L2/ UO N0 JUSS Od BUBHOD) JO UORONIISUOD anosddy R=VEETY 000'5258 uonoNIISUOY Jisuelj eueno)
UliM paadoid 0} 20N “pancidde pieog — 61/6L/E 1oy 91| :‘arg3y 0} pieog £ UM | 10D xouddy Aley all uoljoniisuod
2
SJUBWILIOY | SBION papiaoid paroiddy ajeq ajeq iy awepN adA] uopduasaqg
}9Npo.d [SBDIAIRS pieog pug Hes Jopuap Jjuon ERITVETS
syjuow ¢ 0} | uiyym uonoy pieog bBuipuad sjoaloid = anig _ mou |eaosddy pieog spasu / W) UoIOY = MO|[DA _ 6L0Z ‘1Lz fepy

pleog g1V 10 Bupsi jJuswaindoid S1VO




"10]0B1jU0D $821ASS JIsuesieled S| D Se uonepodsuel | il (ezoz iy S|emaual
AW Ol 10BAUOS JO pIBME UB  SpUSLWIWIODS] S1VYD _:o_mwho%cs | | wenuoo JeadBUOZ | 000°GL6'9$ vav
‘s)nsal aapwwon co_.mem_;m lesodold 3y} uo paseg AW ©) 8L/02/2 1eah g /M 10BNJUO0D junowe .chm._._.. S92IAI9S
Bunesw 394 —8L/ZL/L Bunssw pieog gad |jun pausjep 13pInold 0IAI8S panoidde |enuajod) he J0BIUOD sa0IAIaS
pieod — gL/9L/L "AIN O} pJeme paroidde pseog — 81/0Z/Z | VISUBI|-BiEd POJORAUOD pieog LZ/0ElY 81/9/S 1eah g AW Y lisueneied
d
0Z9'ves
901049
‘000°0G$ 10 ploysaluyy 5,030 oJjed 10}
|y} UM ‘0Z9‘yes Jo |BJ0) B o) 8310y oNad O} papleme 1500 xoiddy (1o 1030101)
aq |Im |10 JoloW "0Z9°ISS 29 (1M BLOZAD O Jepulewal "uopdo [emausl aUo Ym 0.9°L5$ | @2l0yD oslad
do} 10enuod (029°9$ JO [BI0} B 1B) pIny isneuxe @salp | GL/LE/ZL  uBnosy  swe) 6L/LEC)
‘llo Buiginy 2NnelpAy 1o} S1VD UIM SIOBHUOD AUSLND | 9S8U} Jo) palolos Sem g | ybnoliuy |an4 azaauUY
oum ‘(000°SLS Jo |BJ0) B o)) |ond4 zenBiy O} papieme | UB 0S8 ‘@zeauiuy Jo IO 6102 Iudy zanbip 1o} 3
ag (M 8zsaylue 8y} sioym ‘papieme g O} |10 Jojow | Jojojy Joj 2oeld ul 1oe[UOD ul anoidde 180D [BJOL (ezeanynuy) pue
pue 8Z834ue 10} g1| — 61/Z/y ‘Penrcidde pieog — 6L/9L/F | OU Sey Apjueuno S1vD 0] pleog 6L/LEZL 6L/LIL 'xolddy | |ang zanBipy gl (1ol0) 11O
0
1dd
Py Yue|d pue
11D euelO)
10} sanuawly
‘suiejunoy Busjuup ‘spaejjog ‘sajoeidaal ysuel |
ysen ‘suone)s BulBieyo ‘sisjueid 'syoel  ayig  se 14g :
LoNs ‘saniuswE J[BYS-BUI-40, BPNOU| O} MOU payelp Buisq | py Mueld pue euspon 000'055% sajddng
81] - 61/8/2 uswabeuey S1vd J8d ploy uQ — 6L/Lip | 0} SeRIUSWE J[BUS-BUl-4O agl asL agl 1500 x0iddy asi =1 g S|elsiEly
)]
6L02/6L/Z Uo
pleoq 1D Aq paaciddy
joBHUOD saoineg [eba
1eah (g) sl
.Awmmvom " - 0z/8L/5
; ‘Adde nay} st joeRu0D
. 8L Ae pue pue 610z 6L02/6L/Z sajes Ajnoy + s90IMBg
1eah jse| woy sabueyd | g Aepy uibaq oy soeid up | panciddy zz8L/s BLIOLIS | sayseumpy | OTdY ‘WMId | Tpeq SedIAleg
ON 'JoBJUO0D Jeah-¢ mau paaosdde pieog — GL/6L/Z | 29 0} 19RINUCD JBBA-C MaN pieog (mau) (mau) AlLpuow MeT] d1peqy | ynsuon feban
1
-Aouaby auy
Jjo sjuawys|dwosoe sy}
"S[EM3USJ YIUOLW-aA[2M] () N0} | 9SBOMOYS PUB *AlUNLUILWGD
0} dn Joj uoldo sy} YIM ‘SyjuowW g 10} 000‘SZ LS JO Junowe 9y} U puesq aanisod
3y} Ul 8q 0} UONEPUSWIIODDI PIEME JOBRIUCD YIIM ‘90UBS | B UIBJUIRW PUB pling ‘aseq
400N Si wuy Buloss 1saybiH (D3d) @aniWwwo) uohen|eas diysiapu g1 yD aseasou|
|lesodold 8y} Ag psajeneas asem UoIym  s|esodoud 0} suBisap pue saibajens S901AIBS
G pBAl@dal S1yD "ssald AP@OAA Syl PpuUB B)BI0APY Bungasiew -ppur ‘swelboid 8L/8L/6 1eak Jad ’
8yl ul pasiueape pue swuy ubisap oydelb zg o) 1uas sem Bunayiew Buiynosxs pue panoiddy wnwixep adu3idg uBiseg
uoneldlos 44y uy - 81/1Z/L "panoiddy pieog — gL/8LI6 Buneato Ul 51vD ISISSY pieog 6L/0E/6 gL/L/01 000°5Z1$ 1420y d4y ojydein
3]
BPIAO. aje ale
SJUBLIWIO? | SAION paplaoid panosddy 1eq jeq iy aweN adA uondiasaq
JONpPo.d [SadInIeg pieog pugy Hels JOopusp Jjuon 92IAI8S
syjuow ¢ 0} | Ulyim uoljoy pieog Buipuad sjoeloid = an|g _ mou eaolddy pieog spaau / Waj| UOHAY = MO|[RA _ 61L0Z ‘Lz Aep

pleog S1vJ 40} bupsiq yuawainsdoid S1VI




0z0Z aunp ssaacid
2 |EMBUS] LEIS
'seoud swes e /1/LE/8 zz/LerR ey zzILeis
NIy} 10BJU0D pUIIXa yBnouy LLILL8 J2d 000°002% Nyl s|emaual
o0} paaibe Jeakpoos s[emaual niy} si 81509 JB3A BUO Z M
upyoIN (£) 9 Jeakpoos (z) e Jeak 1e9Apo0S) | abesany 910z 0Z/LE/8 NIY) sieak
‘auosabpug (1) woy spig € paAeoey S1vD Bulusdo pig 8U0 Z /M im £ Joj JoBQUOD
LLIZZI9 "JopuaA a|qisuodsal pue aAjsuodsal 1S9MO| BU) Sem LL/EL/L penoidde 394 sieah ¢ 1o | 1oBHUOD St M (sauruaLIRp)
auojsabpug ey} paulwlsiap sem | -21/0g/9 ‘sucissebpug LLIBLIL j0BljUOD wauny (sieak g ‘suopeladQ aul sasng 10}
0] JOBNUOD JO pIEME UB pUSWWOZal sidaq juswainsold LLIBLIL panoiddy leniu| 10} 1800 159) 2ll] seauauy fiddng
pue U S1VD-LLIEL/L “LL/8LIL uo parciddy pieog panoiddy pieog pieog 0Z/1E/8 LLILIG 000'009$ | ouojsebpug | jeusiey | 9SEST BJl]
1
SAS YAY 8 OdV AV i O
doj abesanog soueUSURW fAuene 3_.._.m;._m>> SaJIAIeS
'BL/LE/L NIYY BL/L/8 WY SWAISAS YAY B OdY “IAY | Alueliepy @ sousuajue)y SLILLIL 9 ‘sanUBLIEM } M ‘voddng | YojEINOINOY
Joj abesanoo Ajueuem pue poddns yosy mauss o) |eacidde ‘voddng yoa | panoiddy ‘Uoddns yoa) alemyosg yoa Jo}
pieoq Buipuad we)| - 81/ZL/L "gLILL/L UO paroiddy pieog |  8L/zL/. percidde 394 pieog 6LILE/L 21L/LI8 joseshauo | YOJBWRINOY | somisg 3JeM}jos
‘B810Z-pIl Buipieme pue sAep 09-0¢ UM
N0 d-4y ay) aaey o) Buidoy sie apy "uoheULIO] JaLed o)
sjuawpedsq S1vD (1B upm Buiiom Joamu) Jo SLjuowWw Jaye 2IEMI0S 43
‘ddy ey Bupjesp uo Josnul ym Bupiom S| JUBWSIND0lY | — BIBMIJOS apiM-LUSISAS 10j aIEMOS s >m du3
SLVO — 6L8/Z '6L/L/F UO SIYD 0] juas MIOA\ JO | d-¥ UB 8Nss| pue Jeip o} apIm
adoog pesinal e Lym aBess Jeip au ul 1S S d4d — 612y | Bupliom Apusuine i S1vo ag.L agl agl agl wiayshs alemyos
"d4d 8uj Jo sjuswalinbal |ed1uyoa) au) 193w paiwgns
siesodoid auy 4 Buwuueiep up ApeasB (D3d) seniwwWoD
uonenieae [esodoid SiyD dipy |m souelsisse  SIYL
‘Jaw ale sjuswalinbal pue spsau uopeoyioads [BIIUYDS}
PuUB AMOS SLVD 2insus 0} paa@oal sjesodoid auy J0 Mainal juawdojanaq
[e21UY93) BY} Ul sjusuwede( JUSWAINJ0IY PUB || S1VD 81/91/8 paroidde 394 . uopeosyoadg
Jsisse os|e |im Aay] "d-4¥ UB 1o} UONN|OS [EDILYDS} SIBMOS gL/Lzie . | wam dy3
B J0j s08dS [BOIUY2S ] puB (MOS) HOA J0 2dooS pajielsp & 81/1Z/8 panoiddy Bunynsuog sa0IMDS
dojanap |Iwm JUB|NSUOD BY] "gL/LZ/8 uo parciddy pieog panoiddy pleog pseog 6L/0S/ 8LILI6 PLr 68 Joamu| a4y 21eM)IOS
"UoBa SUJUOW-Z | IO} MBUS)
0} suondo z yym joenUOD Jeaf-g¢  -ou| ‘seoineg AUnosg sjemaual Sa2IAIBg
IBSIBAA O} POpIEME JOBIUOD AJUNOBS — 9L/GL/L U0 pieme ‘UONEDO| ‘PA|g BPLIOI SL/EL/LL Jeak-auo 1S00 [enuue | "Duj ‘sadlAleg pieng
[euiBuo paaociddy pieog ‘pieog |} 0} aAow o} panoidde 0§22 SLVD le seoinies paaoiddy 2401 000°2€2% fAunosag saoinleg
sspiWwo) 394 — g1/g/LL parocidde pieog - L/EL/LL pleng Aunoss - // ¥z pleog 6L/LE/ZL 6LIL/L “xouddy 1319 d=y Anoeg
S
SJUBWIWIO? | SIION papiaold panoiddy ajeq ajeq Jwy aweN adA | uonduasaq
19Npold [S82IAIRS pieog pu3g ues Jopuap Jjuon RV ETS
syjuow ¢ o} | ulyiim uojay pieog Buipuad sjosloid = an|g _ mou [eAoiddy pieog spasu [ Wa)| UOIIOY = MO|[OA _ 6L0Z ‘Lz Aew

pleog S1Y9 40} bunysi jusawainsoid S1VID




M
{28 SIU} 1918| JUSS aQ ||IM pue
Z1 4o pesjsul sasnq g Jo aseyoind 8y} 1oayas o} pabueyd
aq [Im "O'd euy ‘uswabeuew 184 910z "99Q ul |[eacidde
pieog souls Buipuad "O'd  :398PAN — Zijkeie (PIoy AR, | et poued Arsnyeq
uo) sasnq g 10} Od 8nss| 0} 03 Woll Hd paroidde M%W%M% e _%wm%uwm maﬂ
Bugiemy —"LL/LL/y "suluow 9L s slep Aiealep LULLIL 020z niy 0Z'L2Z'L\v$ ainpayog Ateneg
3yl "O'd Bulpues alojeq weyy woy oy wy Ang 40 yaam sieak g Jano seniuswe uee
uo mCEm>> 'sesng g 1o) B9 o1 yeem SIy} penssi 9L/0Z/ZL 210z palspio ag pappe sasng
9q [IM [ "O'd BuIpuSd — LL/LL/L = BUID 0} s "O'd somaZ | oagmon | penss; | 89 | 4 eoudsnquag | 8L Am_vmm o1
LL/LVEZ/L "eduBUSIUIEIN SIVD >Q paaladal useq sAey 0v'Z9E'1L90'S$ 'O'd |10t paroiddy ul am.)__w_u uaaq g Jo aseyoing [2salp Y4 G¢ 0015 ¥
s8snqg g ||e Jeyl paylou Sem Juswainooid — gLIE/L €0 0g2'LzF$ :20ud yun sng paeog sasnq g sey '0'd JOpIO £ 2711 ‘Buno Buijioy S3I2IYBA
"B113)014 pue
12A|4 MON ‘A WOY SPIG € PAAISISY S1VO — LLIGLIOL
‘9]Ep-0} OpPBW US3Q SBY PIEMB IO} UONEPUSWILLCDSI suone}s
ON ‘pPaulLlalep ussq jou Sey pig 9|gisuodsal pue SHLTELS Buibieys
aMsuOdsal 1SaMO| Y| "M3IASI JBPUN [|}S 818 PaAIadal SpIg uoners au3o00
€ IV — LL/pLILL “[eroidde Joj preoq |Iny O} way By} aAowW pieme BuIBIELD £ nersul pue
0} pRJoA 384 "AAG Aq palIwgns piq salsuodsal pue paoud 6L0Z jo a1ep ay U0 pue snq suone}s abuey bmzmm_
1S8MO| 8y} 0) S9SNq 100} GE JUO9IR £ J0 aseyaind auy Joy ‘zz ga4d Aq woyy sieak 3U0 40§ 1500 Buibieys
1OBNUOD JO pJEME UB PSpUBLWIWCoal §1yD — Bujssw Jg4 ag o} Manllaq | G xau 8yl i o_‘.aum_w PRpLARCI
- 8L/ZL/L "sesng ¢ 1o} gAd O} pieme pancidde pieog BLILIE Jo} pasn m_mﬂ_wmmmg & Iy (usg)
= 8L/I9L/L '6l/Ze/T Ag @1ep Asniep yum sasng 9s(3 € Jo | “suonels BuiBieyo esnoy | uo panss| Od aq ueo BujB B __mm ; (¢) sesng
13PI0 B} 10} JAE O} PAIIWIANS "O'd — 8L/L/E “SPEW 3g UED -Ul ¢ |[egsul pue sbuel 8L/9L/L 1oeuoD cpuesesng | PoE Sesng 2113993
Juswihed alojeq siuswainbsal w4 Jad sjuswnoop pieme | Aiajjeq pepusixa/m 100} G§ panoiddy £ 1oy @0ug o11323|3 ¥a01g -
-1s0d uo Buniep) “paAIsds) Usaq sAey $8SNq € IV — 6L/L/S | ‘S9SN OLI08e ¢ SSeyDIng p.eog £Z/OL/L0 | 8L/9L/LO pig [E10L ¢ sesng Buyioy S2[2IYSA
'0}8 ‘yoleas
VS pue ‘sjeoymed Buikqqo ‘apiyaa ayy ul sjusuodion —_— :m.w_.‘_m_mwwv& seoeds
Jo IS % ‘eouswy Ang “a'1 ‘@seysind Siy} 40} pauiRlqo 40 1d1898 [ejoL A mmm_.,.,_m —_—
aJe SUBWNOOP V1 4 sjeudosdde suy) aunsua 0} Jopuaa Siy) 18y8) 09°95.°6818 (aurjoses) uc__w_mmm A
yim Buppiom Apusung si juawainooid S1vD "L L90L000YE#H J0BIUOD BIEIS V] oY s ’ suep Jisuel ]| -eled
JoBIUOD 9JBIS BUBISINOT 8} JO JJO SI|BS SNg SAlEaID) WO} 9SBYIING 0} puaju| BLILLIL Aep oG % vav ¢ vav
lopuan panosdde sy woy peseyoind ag (M SIPIYRA panoiddy 6LI0E/L 8L/5zZ/8 Yyoes sa|eg SA01S
pejemod auijosef ssay) °giL/giL/. uo panoiddy pieog |  8L/zL/. percidde 394 pieog pojeunse | pajewnss | zz'zGz'e9$ | Sng aAneald | bujoy S8[3IY3A
‘018 ‘YoIeas
VS pue ‘sjesyiuag Bulkqqo ‘apiyaa ayy Ul sjusuoduwon JOBAUOD 81BIS W 8l (58pi0 _._‘mvom”m%wwﬁ saoeds
0 187 % ‘eouswy Ang “&7 ‘eseyoind S|y} JOj PaUILIGO |  WOL SSBYDING O} pusiu| 10 101608 e mw_\mzm —
3l SHUBWINO0P V| 4 aleudoidde sy} ainsus 0} JOPUBA SIY) 1oe) (autjoses) mc__%mwm A
U Buisiiom ARUSLING S1 JUBWAIND0Id S1VD “LL90 L 000 81/91/8 panoidde 394 oYy |elol : sup jisuel]-eled
10BJJUOD B)R)S BURISINOT BU) JO YO SB|BS SNg SANEaID SLLZI8 Aep 05l Z2Z52'59% vav | vav
lopusn psaoidde ayp woy peseyoind B8q M BpPIYSA 8L/L2/8 panciddy BL/L0/2 81/52/8 yoeg sajes 0TS
pasamod auloseb syl 'gL/Lz/g uo pasciddy pieog panciddy pieog pieog palewysy | pajewnse | zzZ'zZGZ'e9$ | sSng aAneald | buioy S3|2IUBA
A
i ; [} uondaiiosa
SJUBWILIOY | SBION papiAoid panoiddy 2i1eq ajeq Jwy aweN adA ) ndi a
jonpold jsadialeg pieog pug Hels Jopuap nuon ERTVVETS
Syjuow ¢ 03 | UIypm uonay pieog bBuipuad sjosfoid = anig _ mou [eaoiddy pieog spaau [ wa)| uodY = MO A _ 61L0Z ‘1z Ae

pieog SV 104 bunsi juswainosoid S1VI




JEIIUQD
12410 pue souepinB ‘SISAJEUB  'UOIE}NSUOD T hummhmco Bugnsuop 030 34 owwuhﬂm—wqu_ [ejo2ds HH
‘suonouny YH pezi|eoads Jsujo pue | ‘aoinpe jo Aem Ag S801AI8S/S80IN0Sal MM Z01810Z Od (14 058) dH o)
aoueisisse Wy Buninsuod @LoZ unp | aanebnssaul [enuspyuod sapinoid JUBYNSUOD | nuon uspum 6L/1LE/E aL/L/e 000°05$ BVETET = =TTy | jueljinsuon ¥H
P3|l 89 ued suonisod Juedea ‘SISBQ pepasu Se uo LLi0Zt 19BNU0D Bupnsuoy Y¥H 1oB1U0D
[jun suonesado Ajlep yum 10joaiq HH | SuoisiABl Ndd ® Seioljod ‘Buiuien dws ‘sypne 800/10Z Od 1A om ) (14 ovs) Uo||INO
mau Aq pepesu souelsissy LL0Z ddy | ‘smsinel soueldwod/m SS0MIBS HH SOPIAOIL | auon uapLm BLISZIY LLvZiY 000'5¥$ BUL| juejnsuo)d yH
"000'0G$ JUNOWE JORIILOD XEj v 4o dnoig
'gL0Z Je ‘sebueyo seyio oN ‘6L0Z | (BuiAgqol) seowuas [eucneanps pue suoneRy | hwrmcm“m__wn_ Wy Xe ABojens Bupnsuo)
ybnouy joeUCO pudx3 — BEOZ JB | ‘sileyy [ejuswwisAcg sepinoid  jueynsuoD | puoguspum | GL/LEZL 6LILIL 000°0S$ uiayjnog suole|ay juswuisA0D)
000°0€$ JO Xew pue Juy/0G$ 1o} | "0}@ 'SUONEIIDUODSI JUB] ‘SB|qeAsdal Sjuelb Jo
pajsi| s20iAlesS Ul 8duBuld JO JOJoaUIC | uolEayLEA ‘Sjunocooe Buliouossl Ul 8ouBsSISSE LLL6L0Z Od pejuon
Ag pepeeu souejsissy — 6L0Z AW | uim juswiedaq aoueuld apircid 0 JUBYNSUOD | nuos uanum BLIS/L 6LISi 000°0€$ SIJBH PIDIA juejinsuo) [eioueuly
‘6L0Z .61 "uoipsod 4820 e uonisod
AON UBNoIY) ,0Z AON UO HIom :_wmn Bunelsdg Jeiyd SLVD aul 1o} yoIess ayy ul o} 10N fo | : “_o SaIAlD
0} 6l JSQWBAON UO JOPUBA 0} JUBs | wes) Juswabeuew Jowss s} pue §1yo isisse L£2810Z Od iy xep ‘Auedwon 00D S1vD 10} ARG
SEM P3300.d 0} 30BON — 8LOZ "6k AON | 0} Moddns euoissajoid epiaoid 0} JUBYNSUOD | nuopuonum | GLIGL/LL 8L/02/L1 000'5Z$ 2 1098 |IIM yaieag aAjnoaxy
‘[emauay
Jeak auQp -"zioz uebBsg guop Bup
'sjsa) Brup uo aseasul 050§ B Auo ‘saaholdws aalisuas Alales 10} SadIAIaS S0IBS JO 8ANSUSS A1aES 1oy SBOIMSS V8 O
UHM NSHI UIM JORAUOD [EMBUSI LJUOW | BSNGE BOUBISGNS/ [0Y0OlY 3 Brug 10} $80IM8S | 760610z Od suyuow Z| wpy Aued paiyy
-zl 8y Bulpusixe s| S1vD — BL/BIE | Jolensiuwpy Buifued piyl pajepuelwl Yid4 | nuon usmm 0Z/0Elv 6LILIS 000°S1$ NSHI € 10409y @ Bnug
A (ma1nay yBisiang
QOUBISISSY | MBIneY Em_wh,mso V14 6L0ZA 10} ougisissy aAisuayaidwon
aoue|dwon (40D) MBINSY MBINSY-1S0d ‘Hoddng UoHDY BAID31I0Y) SHSE) 2
wBisieng  amsusysidwod w4 8pnjoul 01 "610Z Ui [euus ] Vid Buiwosdn | yes0.024 0d sejeloossy V.1d 6L0ZAd)
"PRINOSXS 'pazZijeuy J0BAUOD — 6L/9/Z |  JO uoeiedaid ynm S1vD 1SISSE O] JUBINSUOD | jjuog usnm 6L/LEIS 8LvZiz) 158" 1¥$ B Nopeld | @dueysissy aoueljdwo)
"diysiepes| 1y pue pieog
"ajeidwon 0 syjuow g Alpjewxoidde | 0] Juas aq jiim podal [eul4 “Apmis uonesusdwod $82IAl18g
aq pinoys sulpwi| ‘gD Jo} [esodold Aleles Jo} sjayJewW Jejiwis o) aiediwod pajeuluLa) ljauag
pepiwgns  1aybejie  —  8L/0Z/LL |  Pue diysispes| S1¥0 UIM 198w O} JUBYNSUOD | nuoD usnum nun 6LILIL 000°s¥$ Jaybe|jen Apmig dwog Asejeg
‘pazijeuld }0B1UCD — BLIZL/Y
‘gL/LE/ZL UBnouy) pusixe pue
-GZ9'ZL$ 10 Junowe jusLnd 0} G9/'gLS
PPV :papualy 1OBNUOD -gL/9Z/L (e8¢ (e8¢ ¥d) sPlveig emdsalio
'6L/5L/G UBNOMR puBIXa pPuB 06.'Z$ | -dd NS MEWEAN / BUBHOD Je SlusweroldW] | epgioz Od wy xey | Ul ‘sle) HelepyEUe 0D
PPY -Papuswy 10BRU0) — 61/6L/L | GNH JiSUel| WUS)U| ay) 3piaoid [M JUB)NSUOD | 1uo)d ushLpm 6LISLIS 2LV 08L'ved '8 S0JUO a8y
panoiddy ajeq ajeq aweN
SjUBLULIOY papinold S8oIAles 039 pug uels junowyy uonduosag

"epusbe Bunesw pleog 91/0z/Z| UC ag 0} PaNPaLds Si

030 Aq jo8lo.d panoidde jseje; sajeaipul Siy

bijybiy mojjeh

JOpUBA

a|qe|ieae
UOEPUSLIWODaY plemy JoBIUOD -~ OF Jaquanon Ag anp S|emaual .
8q IIm sfesodoid “siasodoud [eguajod aidRinL o} PaYoIIoS 1eak ﬁ%mwwmmwm mr_wm,wocwhmmwwma
usaqg sey d4d — 9L/0L/LL "paAa@2al sjesodoid ¢ Buowe S20IAaS 91EMYOS auo z/m Sid o i
1saybiy paioos oym ‘010 Jus[EA0D 0) 394 Aq percidde pue BupsoH sapnjoul uﬂﬂwwﬁ_« siesh ¢ Lm_m%Mmmﬁ 21607 mwm_uh_,w_mw ubisag-ay
PIEMY — 9L/SL/Z) "SUSqam mau payoune| - .10z Ainp - ubisag-ay s)saaM pieog BLILEZL | LLILO/LD sjEWNST jusjero) Busaa 9})ISOaM
_ L apinold orouddy | dje aje awe adA_ uonduosa
Sjuswiwoy / sajoN __o.:uw._ P! % ,n__ p e Iy ¥ n_ . jed iy N 1 ndi a
, d /S92IAIRS pieog puzy Heys Jopusp 13uon ERIVVETS

syjuow ¢ .2 I ulyiim uonoy pieog Bulpuad syoalold = anig

_ mou |eaoiddy pieog spaau | EE._ Uoijoy = MOJ||B A

6L0Z ‘LT Ael

pieog S1VvD 404 Bunsiq juswainsoid S1VI




(4anjo L
sannp acnwm fouzasK o Bl W SISESE PUEB0S ined) 9711 juawabeuey
pue OO wuBu| By 1sIssy — 8L ; ul] | !
189090 JOPUBA SIU} UM JOBNUOD | WUl S} AQ SUORRIBdO SIVD JO UBISIND | gozercs Od Wy Xep ‘saujsnpu) | J0IUSS S1V 0} J0SIAPY
Mmau e uo Bunuom si SIVO | GLLE | 104 S80MIBs |euoissejold sepiroid JUBYNSUOD | njuod ushum 61/8Z/T gL/zzIoL 000°05% aby maN suopesadQ Joluag
"SISEQ papasu
SE UE UO ‘QyD pue Jsbeuey| juswainoold Bupnsuoy
"SUONOUN JUBWSIND0IY | 8Ul AQ paubisse se SHSE] USWaIND0ld Jayjo S juslisInd0Id
; Zapueula jugjinsuo)
pazieoads Jayl0 pue  3JDUBJSISSE | PUB ‘'SSIIAIBS |[BD-UO, Lym Bunjiom Ajjeoyioads Z01810Z Od Wy Xep P H
jusweinoold Bupinsuo) — gpoz 1des | 'seoiales  JuaWwaINd0ld sapiaoud  JuejNsuon 1UOD UBRIM 61/6/6 gLIoOLI6 000°05% >£mv_ juswaindold
I EREIEE]
[9S8IQ pue |IQ UGN JNNBIPAH 10}
pIq }S8MO| Sem [en4 zenBiyy aseslo
[83UM B PIN|d UCISSIUSUEL] ‘|IQ JOJO}
IO Jess) - Joj pig 1s3mo| By} sem TIg (piny
JSE0D UNS — 'sjonpold peje@y 10 1o isneyxa
Kisnijep pue aseyaind ayj Joj sianddns |osaip
ajeiedas z 0] pieme pig  Mau ‘llo auiginy
paroidde pieog —LL/LL/L “Auoyine olnelpAH)
Ployssiyy Q3ID Byl UM ale pue 0199¢%
BL/LE/ZL NIUY BL/L/L JO pouad By} Ioj HERF]
1eak 3U0 10y pamaUal 8q ||IM SIOBIUCD Zanbip
asay) ‘|end zenBuy woy spnpoid 1284u00 Yoes
J0} 0.9'9€$ pue 1se0) ung wWoly 104 000°05%
spnpoid Jo) §90°Z1L$ O} 1SOJ [BNULE "9ZoalyljUe pUE (10 JOJOW SJe Swa)| g ssay) | I9Iunowe
pajosloid ayy Buuemol Agassyy ‘ebesn '6L0Z Jeak au 1o} 000'0L§ AlB1ewixoidde | PIBOS MOISq (aseaub
paledionue [euibuo au) UBY) SS9 yonL Je pajewnse s 9oud se ‘jencidde Joy pieog o | St PIOUSaILy |9auMm pue
Bie /107 JAD 10} sponpoid peje@y | 0B |jw 8say L “sAep g IxaU sy} Uim pajoljos | SE @roidde piny ‘sues
IO 8y} Joy aBesn 8y} jey) pauILLIBIEp aq [IM G 1| MU / "Pig B9 ||IM ‘S8SEBI0LI g} ajqe onayiuAs
usaq sey I — ZLSLZL Cludy soud Jeybly o3 anp ‘pemausi jou sway | S' O30 SLVD ‘110 Jean)
Ul 029°LG$ Joj ZenBiy O} JORALOD |Bj0) o A 590715
aaoidde o} pieog "0/9°0E$ 40} swa)l "8SBali0uUl 10} SUOEIN2IED |dd apiaosd sjemaua) seon 020 UEr 10} 610z 495
8410 Jo} S1VD UM JoRHUOD ARUBLIND | 0} SPBSU JOPUBA “[BMBUSI B} JO SWI 1B [dd aY) 128K BUO ang £q ss8201d Aunbul [emaUs) LelS
Asur pue ‘000'GL$ Jo) ezsBnUY uo paseq jusugsnipe aoud ‘zz/gL/L UBnosyl | 4 seyjsenuon (soueusjuiep)
SUl papieme 3q pinom [and zanbBipy Jo spouad 1eak (1) suo aAISsa0INs ({) Jnoy ‘BL/LE/ZL {110 1o101n) Sjanpolid pejejey
'029'7€$ 10} |IO JOloW Byl papieme | 0} dn s|gejieae suondo [emausy JOBJUOD £10Z | NIUI ZL/LL/L 029 7E%
8 pinoM B0l04D ONad BZBBUNUY | BL/LE/ZL UBNOIY) 1DBAUOD BZ8BLRUY puB I0 |  panoidde OOUD | gy seyddns puy
PUE |10 JOJoW 10j PaYioiios 11 — BL/ZlY | 1010 Joj uondo lemauai (1) suo sey g1 6102 pJeog 6LILEIZL 6LILIL onad [euslEn 0
‘Bunesw
pieog Jedoid oy 1B psjussed
ag pinom  Usiym ‘jpenuod  sabuol syuow g
B Ol J9lUs 0} 9S00UD ABW S1YD ‘Riessanau Jeuonippe
‘weiboid jo|ld Jeuy siyy peydsooe | punoy Se Seele JSYI0 PuB SBAISS SIVD ue mauai
pieog oy pue Bugesw pieog | Jeyl Seale JUSLND BU) JO SPISINO JAYS SBIN0I 0} uoydosm ou| weiboid
84l Je passnosip sem SIyl — 6L/SL/L | SL¥D ames 0] weiboid jopd ysuenomi BLISLIL 6L/61/9 gL/ioz/zlL 000°sz$ ‘o07|suel L 10Iid }SUB.JOIDIN
JoBNUCO Jo pleme Buipuawiwodss | uones|del SMY g 9DBI0IS pnop Jualisde|dal F— papuaLILLIo9a)
FENET] 03D wssg ‘aimusy, | juejsul ‘saiepdn JA g ‘uonnjos Jaalas dnyoeq l%amw d “_mm 18197 03D
PapUALILLODA) D3d'siesodosd | JoAl9s BUO U ||B pUB Sapnjoul “Jaalas dmyoeq SLIZLIo sa|6ojouydal @ouej|ddy
£ PaAIB0al pue pssieApy - gLoz 4dy | Bumsixe s1vD Joj wsishs 1| dn-yoeq tesh G | zgosloz od £2/0€/9 SL/LIL 8ze'8z$ 8imuap Janiag dn yoegq 1|
‘papaau se 030 au) Aq paubisse sysel "osiw
SJUBIWOY [ SBION papiroid panosddy ajeq ajeq iy aweN adA ] uonduosaq
Jonpoid /sedinies pieog pug Helg Jopuap luon L TVNVETS
syjuow ¢ 03 | uiyym uonoy pieog buipuad sjoafoid = en|g _ mou [eaosddy pieog spasu [ W}l UOIIDY = MO|[BA _ 6L0Z ‘Lz Aep

pieoqg S1v9 40j bunsiq Juswainooid S1VI







